
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: April 10, 2018, City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer, Alaska 
Regular City Council Meeting 

April 10, 2018, at 7 PM 
City Council Chambers 

231 W. Evergreen Avenue, Palmer 
www.cityofpalmer.org 

AGENDA 

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. ROLL CALL

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
1. Approval of Consent Agenda

a. Action Memorandum No. 18-044: Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Consent to
Assignment for the Assumption of the Proprietary Lease from Joshua Nance to Eldon E. Bell, Jr.
& Holly A. Bell for Palmer Hangars Owners Association Unit No. 4, Lot 11, Block 3 at the Palmer
Municipal Airport ....................................................................................... Page 3 

b. Action Memorandum No. 18-045: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute a
Renewed Agricultural Lease with Ben VanderWeele for a Parcel of Land Containing Approximately
Five Acres of Airport Land Located on Outer Springer Loop ........................... Page 37 

c. Action Memorandum No. 18-046: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute a
New Agricultural Hay Lease Agreement with Adam J. Jenski, dba RK Ranch, on Approximately
110 Acres of Airport Lands Currently in Hay Fields at the Palmer Municipal Airport
 ............................................................................................................... Page 47  

2. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meetings
a. February 27, 2018, Regular Meeting ........................................................... Page 63 
b. March 27, 2018, Special Meeting ................................................................ Page 69 
c. March 27, 2018, Regular Meeting ............................................................... Page 71 

E. COMMUNICATIONS AND APPEARANCE REQUESTS
1. Presentation from ADOT&PF Highway Design Chief James Amundsen

F. REPORTS
1. City Manager’s Report ..................................................................................... Page 75 
2. City Clerk’s Report .......................................................................................... Page 109 
3. Mayor’s Report ............................................................................................... Page 115 
4. City Attorney’s Report

G. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

H. ACTION MEMORANDA
1. Action Memorandum No. 18-047: Approving a Council Community Grant in the Amount of

$500.00 to the Great Alaska Council Boy Scouts of America Valleywide Community Pinewood Derby
Race to be held on April 19, 2018 .................................................................... Page 117 

Mayor Edna B. DeVries 
Deputy Mayor Richard W. Best 
Council Member Steve Carrington 
Council Member Sabrena Combs 
Council Member David Fuller 
Council Member Brad Hanson 
Council Member Pete LaFrance 

City Attorney Michael Gatti 
City Clerk Norma I. Alley, MMC 
City Manager Nathan Wallace 

Page 1 of 136

http://www.cityofpalmer.org/


__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: April 10, 2018, City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 2 

2. Action Memorandum No. 18-048: City Council Providing a Favorable Opinion, In Accordance with
Palmer Municipal Code 9.74.010 Discharge of Firearms, to Allow the City Manager to Issue an Indoor
Gun and Target Range Permit .......................................................................... Page 127 

I. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE

J. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

K. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS

L. ADJOURNMENT

Tentative 2018 Palmer City Council Meetings 

Meeting 
Date 

Meeting 
Type Time Notes 

April 17 Joint 6 pm PZC 

April 24 Regular 7 pm 

May 8 Regular 7 pm 

May 22 Regular 7 pm 
June 12 Regular 7 pm 
June 26 Regular 7 pm 

Page 2 of 136



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 18-044 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Action Memorandum No. 18-044 

 
Subject:  Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Consent to Assignment for the Assumption of the 
Proprietary Lease from Joshua Nance to Eldon E. Bell, Jr. & Holly A. Bell for Palmer Hangars Owners 
Association Unit No. 4, Lot 11, Block 3 at the Palmer Municipal Airport  
 
Agenda of: April 10, 2018 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: City Manager 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development    

X  Finance  

 3/19/18 
  Fire    
  Police     
  Public Works     

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 

 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 0 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
 Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
X Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
 Budgeted Line item(s):  
 Not budgeted   

 
 

Director of Finance Signature:  

Page 3 of 136



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 18-044 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
 City Information Sheet 
 Certificate of Insurance 
 Purchase Agreement 
 Assignment & Assumption of Proprietary Lease & Transfer of Certificate of Membership 
 Assignment & Assumption from Allen to Nance 
 Proprietary Lease Agreement 2007 
 Palmer Hangar Owners Association Approval of Sale from Nance to Bell 
 City of Palmer Consent to Assignment 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
Palmer Hangar Owners Association is the lessee for the 9-unit T-Hangar complex constructed on Yukon 
Drive at the Palmer Municipal Airport. The Palmer Hangar Owners Association has a proprietary lease 
agreement with Joshua Nance for Unit 4. Mr. Nance is assigning this lease to Eldon E. Bell Jr. & Holly A. 
Bell.  This is the third assignment of the original proprietary Lease:  PHOA to Gallagher, Gallagher to 
Allen, Allen to Nance, and Nance to Bell. 
 
In accordance with and in keeping with article 3, Compliance with the underlying Airport Lease, and the 
Palmer Hangers Owners Association Proprietary Lease with Joshua Nance (the assignor) and Eldon E. 
Bell Jr. & Holly A. Bell (the Assignee’s) acknowledge their understanding of and agree to be bound by 
and to comply with all terms of Palmer Municipal Airport Lease Agreement No. 05-02 (The Airport 
Lease), as if a lessee thereunder. The Assignor and the Assignee also acknowledge and agree that their 
rights under this Proprietary Lease are invalid and ineffective unless and until the City of Palmer 
executes a Consent to the Assignment of Proprietary Lease as set forth in the Airport Lease, and the 
Assignee, in writing, agrees to be bound by the terms and conditions of the Airport Lease. 
 
The administration recommends that the Council Authorize the City Manager to Execute a Consent to an 
Assumption of Proprietary Lease from Joshua Nance to Eldon E. Bell Jr. & Holly A. Bell for Palmer Hangars 
Owners Association Unit No. 4, Lot 11, Block 3 at the Palmer Municipal Airport with the condition that the 
City receives the following: (1) Copy of fully executed Assignment and Assumption of proprietary lease 
and Certificate of Membership. 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
To approve Action Memorandum No. 18-044 for a transfer of Unit # 4, Lot 11, Block 3, Palmer Municipal 
Airport. 

Page 4 of 136



Page 5 of 136



 
 

Certif icate of  Insurance 
  

	
	
	
This	is	to	certify	to:			 City	Of	Palmer	 	 		 	 	 	
whose	address	is:	 231	W	Evergreen	

Palmer,	AK	99645	
	
	
	
that:	 	 Eldon	E.	Bell			 	 	 	
whose	address	is:	 2973	S	Lakeshore	Loop		

Palmer	AK	99645			
	
Is	insured	with	Preferred	Aviation	Underwriter,	for	the	Limits	of	Coverage	stated	below.			
	
Insurance	Type																					Policy	Number(s)																																	Policy	Term	 																																			Limits	of	Coverage	

	
HANGAR LIABILITY            02-LX-090012696-0                          03/13/18 -03/13/19                           Each Occurrence     
                                                       $1,000,000                                   
 
         																																																																																																																																																										
Combined Liability Coverage for           
Bodily injury and property damage   
TOOLS 
           
                                                      Deductible                                                  Amount of Insurance 
 
                            $10,000 
                                                                                                                $  1,000 
                                                                                                                                           
 Applies to:  Hangar - Palmer Buddy Woods Municipal Airport, Unit 4,Lot 11, Block 3, Palmer, AK 99645                                 
City	Of	Palmer is named as an additional insured with respect to the operations of the Named Insured.  Whom  we agree to notify 30 days before 
date of cancellation, if policy should be cancelled by  the insured company. 
 
This certificate of insurance neither affirmatively nor negatively amends, alters or extends the coverage afforded by the above numbered policy. 
 
Falcon Insurance Agency, Inc. 
Address:  P.O. Box 291388, Kerrville, Texas 78029 – Telephone 800-880-4545 – Fax (830) 792-1144 
 

By                                                                                                                          
date:  March 13, 2018 
Michael Etlinger  

	

Page 6 of 136



ffiT
PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT

WITH EARNEST MONEY DEPOSIT

Received kon E I)". I\-ll (the "Buye(s)"), the
Dollars (g ), by Check # ,lS/ 

"
sum of $

.J r'r-ti ( ),r Ni A ri {z- (the "Selle(s)"), aspaid to
earnest
follows:

money and deposited with Mat-Su Title Agency, LLC, on the terms as set forth as

1. Sale. The Seller(s) agrees to sell to Buye(s) and Buye(s) agrees to purchase, at th6
price and on the terms and conditions set forth below, the following described property in the
Palmer Recording District, Third Judicial District, State of Alaska:

o rJ L o,,r-

r
hereinafter "the Property". The sales price includes the following personal property (if none,
leave b!ank): .

2. Price. The total purchase price for the Property is:
the Buye(s) as follows:

$ 7! m>(9 payable by

(a) The earnest money deposit mentioned above is to be held by Mat-Su
Title Agency, LLC in its non-interest trust account. Said earnest money will be held by Mat-Su
Title Agency, LLC until the transac{ion ls completed or fails to close. lf the Buyer(s) is unable to
complete this purchase, the eamest money may, at Selleis sole option, be forfeited as
liquidated damages and Selle(s) may elect to pursue any other remedy available at law or in
equity, if any. Should the sale close, th6 eamest money deposit shall be credited against the
purchase price due Selle(s) at closing.

(b) The balance of the purchase price in the form of cash or certlfied check
shall be deposited with the escrow agent on or before closing, or payable as follows:

(Leave blank if no financing)

3. Condition of Propertv. Buye(s) offers to purchase the property in its present 'As{s"
condition (if left blank), or, subject to the following items to be completed before closing:

4. Other Buver noenctes. Other contingencies of Buyer(s) purchase are:
(lf none leave blank)

sb

Purchase and Sale Agreement with
Earnest Money Deposit- Page 1 of 4

Page 7 of 136



5. Charqes. Upon closing, the escrow agent shall charge the Selle(s) and/or Buyer(s) as
indicated by ptacing a mark in the appropriate column (if both Seller and Buyer column marked,
the cosls will be divided equally).

B

Document Preparation
Recording Fee
Owne/s Title lnsurance
Lender's Title lnsurance
Bank Set-Up Fee
Annual Escrow Fee
Escrow Closing Fee
Origination Fee
Commitment Fee
Credit Report
Flood Certificate
Resale Certification
Home lnspection

Discount Points
Tax Registration
HOA Transfer Fee
Appraisal
SurveyiAs Built
Assessments
Smoke Detectors
Well Flow Test
Reserves
VA Funding Fee
Assumption Fee
Wdl/ Septic lnspection
Other:

SBS
_/ -.

'./t t ''
1./..-,,.

t/ -/
l"' L'

r./ ,-/
_< __1

t-/ .-/
,/ _Z

__4 /'
__< _-Z
----2, --/'

.,/.

,./'
-_-€

t/'
t-./'

-r.2.

---r<.
.--<

v,/.

_Z
_4
,/
c/
v-

-Z
-z-

Taxes for the current year, rents, insurance, interest, homeowners dues, mortgage reserves,
water and any other utilities constituting liens and security deposits, shall be pro- rated or
transferred as of the date of recordation of the deed. Possession of the property will occur on
recording, or A p-, I 1- , Zot R

6. Title and Deed. Selle(s) shall convey marketable titl€ to the Property to Buye(s) by warranty
deed free and clear of all liens, charges and encumbrances, clouds and defects whatsoever,
except:

,l
Y ,Xk/,fl,
zolg7. Time. The closing date shall be on or before

unablo to close or deliver possession of the Property to Buye(s) by closing, other than for any
reason caused by the acts or omission of Buyer(s), Selle(s) shall return to Buye(s) the earnest
money deposit.

8. Title Guarantv lnsurance. A title insurance policy in the amount of the purchase price issued
.by Mat-Su Title Agency, LLC as agent for its underyvriter will be issued to Buye(s) at closing. lf
Selle(s) financing is being provided, a standard mortgagees title policy will be issued to the
Selle(s) in the amount of the financing.

9. Preliminarv Title Report. Selle(s) shall obtain for Buye(s) a commitment to issue the
required title policy ("title report') from Mat-Su Title Agency, LLC immediately upon the
execution of this Agreement. A copy will be provided to Selle(s) and Buyer(s). Within ten (10)
days from the receipt of said title report by Buye(s), Buyer(s) shall notify Selle(s) and the title
company of any restrictions, reservations, limitations, easements and conditions of record, ("title
defects') disclosed in the title report which are objectionable to Buyer(s). ln the event that
Buye(s) so notifies Selle(s) of any title defects, Seller(s) shall have until the closing date to
cure or remove the title defects. Selle(s) shall be obligated to remove all title defects objected
to by Buye(s) or shall notify Buye(s) that such items will not be removed at or prior to closing in

which event, Buyer(s) shall be entitled to return of the eamest money deposit. Rights reserved
in federal or State patents, governmental building or use restrictions, and building or zoning

Purchase and Sale Agreement with
Earnest Money Deposit-Page 2 of 4

lf Selle(s) is

Page 8 of 136



regulations and provisions shall not be deemed defects or encumbrances. Any defects or
encumbrances may be discharged at closing out of the purchase money.

1 0. Broker's Commission. The Selle(s) and Buye(s) represent that no real estate broker was
involved in this transaction and that no brokerage fees or other compensation is due any real
estate broker or any other person because of this transaction.

1 1. Escrow Aoent. This transaction shall be placed in escrow with MaFSU Title Agency, LLC
("escrow agent"). A copy of this Agreement shall be deposited with the escrow agent by the
Buye(s), and this Agreement shall serve as the escrow inshuctions. The escrow agent may
additionally attach its standard escrow instructions.

12. Closinq Documents - Funds. On or before the closing date, the escrow agent shall record
the deed and any other instruments required to be recorded and shall deliver to each of the
parties or their assigns, the funds and documents to which they shall be respectively entitled,
together with its escrow statement, provided that the escrow agent shall then have on hand all
funds and documents necessary to complete the transaction and provided the title company has
stated that it shall be in a position to and will issue and deliver, upon the filing of the deed of
record, the title insurance required hereunder.

13. Bindinq Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon Selle(s) and Buye(s) and their
respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns. Neither party shall assign
or transfer this Agreement without the written consent of the non-ass ning party.

Buyers will hold title as: (.-r\ Drr{ 0
(

L u) d t

14. Additional Terms:

Purchase and Sale Agreement with
Earnest Money Deposit- Page 3 of 4

fl R-p l) l!

I

I

Page 9 of 136



Selle(s):

Si

.-J L/\

Buye(s):

5 s nature

[U/ r,.l Ai.t (.t Y\ € ktt Jr-
Printed Name Printed Name

Signature

Printed Name

Address: ZZZ? 1 . Avslt nt z, n

ignatu

N

Address: _r

Phone:

e

I
AL,u1t F- L P

Phone: 4o 1-7o7-q 11o;

Email:
Date:
Time:

a-7i @1."1,-^; I c"^ Email:
Date:
Time:

Purchase and Sale Agreement with
Earnest Money DeposilPage 4 of 4

L

O3,/ni / z or<i
,.(: <i

nnr

Page 10 of 136



L
A
S
K
A

2016-0to733-o
Recording Dist: 3'l 1 - Palmer
5/3112016 10:39 AM Pages: 1 of 5

l ]lilililIililtilil ilil ilililil1111ililililililflilffiilililililil til

@ ASSIGIYMENT AND ASsI]MPTIoN oF PRoPRIETARY LEASEms"
2-bC/.D<17 -s- 

-

THIS ASSIGNMENT AND ASSI.]MPTION OF PROPRIETARY LEASE AND TRANSFER
OF CERTIFICATE OF MEMBERSHIP (the "Assignment") is made and entersd into and effective as of
the 26dt &y of May, 20 I 6, by and betrveen DAMD R. ALLEN, an unmarried person, ("Assignor"), whose

ad&ess is 20207 Paul Revere Circle, Eaglo River AK 99577, and JOSHUA NANCE, a married person,
("Assignee'), whose address is 222E S. Austin Circle, Palmer AK 99645.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Assignor is currently the lessee, by Assignment and Aszumption recorded July 15,

2013, Reception Number 2013-015245-0, under that oqrtain Proprietary L,€as€ Ag€ement (the "Lrase")
between Assignor and Palmer Hangars Ovmers Association, dated October 5,2007, recorded October 22,

2007, Reception Ntmber 2007-027127-0, with respect to certain airplanc hangar space described as

Unit No. 4, I.ot I l, Block 3, Preliminary Plat for the Palmer Municipal Airpor! Palmer
Recording Districl Third Judicial Distict, State of Alask4 and

\VffiREAS, by mesne Assignments Palmer Hangars Ownen Associalion obtained a lease from
the City ofPalmer at the Palrner Airport as to the following described property

Lot l l, Block 3, Plat for the Palmer Municipal Airyort, Palmer Recording District, Third
Judicial Disticg State ofAlaska;

Secdon l. Assiqtrment ofProorletrrv L€rse snd Trrnsfer ofCertif,cate ofMembcnhio.
Assignor hereby grants, tansfsrs, conveys and assigns to Assigpee all ofhis right, title and intercst as Irss€e
under the Proprietary Lease and Certificate of Membership, and Assignee ac.c€pts such assignm€nt, and

exccpt as provided in Section 2 below, assumes all obligations of Assignor thereunder, as of the effective

Dalrymplc Law, P.C. . 927 S. Cobb Stre€t, Palmer AK 99645 . 907-745{332 . wvw.matsulaw.com
Assignment and Assumption ofProprietary L€ase and Transfer ofCertificate ofMenbership, Page I

eRecorded Document

and all terms and conditions of said Airport Lease and compliance therewith apply to this Assignment and
Assumption of Proprietary Lease and Transfer Of Certificate Of Membership, all as more fully set fordt
in said Proprietary Lease; and

WHEREAS, Assignor desires to assign his right, title, and interest under dre Proprieary Lease to
Assigneo, and further tansfers ths Certificate ofMembership in and to said Unit 4, and Assigne€ desb€s to
accept and assume the right, titl€, and interest of Assignor under the Proprietary L,ease and Certificate of
Membenhip;

NOW TmREFORD, in consideration of thc foregoing and the covenants and agreements
conrained herein, the parties agee as follows:

Page 11 of 136



date ofthis Assignment, Except as provided in Section 2 with respect to Claims (as such term is hereinafter

defined), Assignee shall defen4 indemnif and hold harmless Assignor fiom and apinst all Claims arising
or occurring under the Proprietary Lease and Certifrsate of Membership after the effective date of this

Assignment.

Section 2, Continued Liabilitv of A$isnor. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section I

above, Assignor expressly agrees that he shall remain liable for all obligations and claims (dre "Claims"),
including, but not limited to, indemnity obligations, arising or occurring under the Proprietary Lease and

Certificate of Membenhip prior to fte effective date of this Assignmen! irrespective of whether a Claim is

made after the effective date of this Assignment. Assignor shall defend, indemni! and hold harmless

Assignee from and against such Claims.

il lilliltlilllllllllllll
2 ol5

2016-01 0733-0

Section 3. Permits. Laws. and Taxes,

3.01. The Assignee shall acquire and maintain, in good sanding, all permits, licenses and other

entitlements necessary to the performance under this Agreement. All actions uken by the Assignee

under this Agr€ement shall comply with all applicable statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations,
including, but not limited to the Palmer Municipal Code, and all state and/or federal laws and

regulations. The Assignee shall pay all taxes pertaining to his performance under this Agreement.

3.(D. In accordance with and in keeping with Article 3, compliance with Airport Lease, of the

Palmer Hangers Ovmers Association ProprieAry Lease with George J. Gallagher and Peggy J. Gallacher

recorded Oitober 22, 2007, Reception Number 2007-027127'0, the Assignee acknowledges his

understanding of and agrees to be bound by and to comply with all terms of Palmer Municipal Airport
Lease Agreement No, 05-02 (The Airport Lease), as if a lessee thereunder. The Assignee also

acknowlJdges and agrees his rights under this Proprietary Lease are invalid and ineffective unless and

until the City of Palmer executes a consent to transfer the Proprietary Leas€ as set forth in the Airport
Lease, and the Assignee, in writing agrees to be bound by the terms and conditions ofthe Airport Lease.

Section 4. Other IostrumentdActions. The parties agree to €xecute such furdrer r€asonable

instruments, to tak" rrch finther rc*onable actions, and to make any additional rcasonable oznsfers m

may be necessary to carry out the purpose and intent ofthis Assignment.

Section5. Miscellaneous.

5.01. Goveroins LaflRemedie.e, This Assignment and 0re rights of the Parties under it will be

govemed by and6ffiEIl respects in *cordance with the lsws of the State of Alaska and the City of
Palmer witrout giving effect to principles or provisions thereof relating to choice of law or conflict of laws.

In any action to Jnfoie the prwisions ofthis Assignment, the prevailing party shall be entitled to rcasonable

attomey fe€s and cout cosb.

5,02. Waiver/Amendments. Any waiver must be in writing, and any waiver by any-party of a

breactr ofany provision ofttris essignment shall not operate as or be constted to be a waivcr ofany other

breach of that irovision or of any breach of any other provision of this Assignment. The.failure of a party

to insist upon sbict adherence io any rc.. oi this Assignment on one or more occasions shall not be

considerpd a waiver or deprive that party of the right thereafter to insist upon stsict adherence.to that term

or any other term ofthis Assignment. This Assignment shall not be altere4 modified or othenvise amended

Dalrymplc Law, P.C. ' 927 S. Cobb Steet, Palrner AK 99645 '907-?45'6332 '\dww.matsulsw com

essignrnent and Assumption of hoprietary Lease and TrEnsf€r ofcertificare of MembershiP' Page 2

tI

eRecorded Document

Page 12 of 136



or any otler term ofthis Assignment. This Assignment shall not be altere4 modifie.d or otherwise amended

except by an instrument in writing signed by both parties.

5,03. Bindinq Effech Assioment This Assignment and all ofthe provisions hereofshall be

binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective succ€ssors and permitted

assigns.

5,04. No Portnenhip. Joint Venturr. Etc. Nothing in this Assignment shall be intended or

deemed to create a partnenhip, joint venture, association, or other similar relationship between the parties

her€to.

s.lxt, No Thlrd Psrtv Beneficisries. This Assignment do€s not create, and shall not be

construed as crtating any rights enforceable by any Person not a party to this Assignment.

5.06. Scvenbilitv, If any provision of this Assignment or any application tiereofshall be held

inratid, illegal or unenforceable, the remainder ofthis Assignment or any other application ofsuch provision

shall not be affected thereby.

s.fi. Counterpsds. The Assignment may be executed in one or more countelparts, including

by facsimilg all of which counterparts taken together shall constitute one and the seme instrument.

IN WTIIYESS WIIEREOF, the parties have executed this Assignment 8s of the date and year firsl

written above.

ASSIGNORT

4.x,zz--
DAVIDR.ALLEN

STATE OF ALASKA

TI{IRD JUDICI,AL DISTRTCT

)
) ss.

)

The foregoing instrument wos acknowledged before me on May 26, 2016, by DAVID R' ALLEN'

Notary Pu ln
T!,?;!Yt_a:_,,,sMy Commission

Dalrymple Law, P.C. '927 S. Cobb SEeet, Palmer AK 99645 '907-745-6332' w\r'w'matsulaw qom

Assiffient and AssumPtion of hoprietary Lease and Transfer of Certificate of Memb€FhiP, Pagc 3

tll illlillllll lillillllllil

';,ffi*

3of5
2016-010733-0eRecorded 0ocument

Page 13 of 136



&NEE:

NANCE

STATE OF ALASKA

THIRD JUDICI,AL DISTNCT

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on M ay 26,2016,by JOSHUA NANCE

Notary in and for Alaska
My Commission Expires: //-.2,r'zolE

t-

)
)
)

t",:,;ffi:.f,..S
=*.-'- 

%?

Record in Palmer Rerording Distriot.
Retum to:
JOSHUANANCE
2228 S. Austin Circle
Palmer AK 99645

Dabymple Law, P.C. . 927 S. Cobb Street, Palrner AK 99645 ' 901'745-6332' www matsulaw com

l"-i6"1-t *a'xrumption of propriaary Lease and Transfer of certificate of Membership, Page 4

ili illilillll lllllllll ll lI
4of5

2016-010733-0eRecorded Documenl

Page 14 of 136



/City of Palmer o Palmer Municipal Airport
231 W. Evergreen Ayenue o Palmer, AK 99645

Phonei 907-745-327L Fax: 907-745-0930

COI{SENT TO ASSIG NM ET{T

In consideration of and in reliance upon the above assumption and promises

contained in this insuument, the City of Palmer hereby consents to the foregoing
Assignment and Assumpuon of Proprietary Lease and Transfer of Certificate of
Membership of Unit 4, Lot 11, Block 3, Plat for the Palmer Municipal Airport, Palmer
Recording District, Third ludicial District, and State of Alaska from David R. Allen,
("Assigno/) to Joshua Nance, ("Assignee).

Current Palmer Municipal Lease No 05-02 (l-he Airport Lease) is in Effect. Except
as otherwise expressly stated herein, nothing in this consent to assignment of
proprietary lease is intended to amend or alter any of the terms and conditions of
the Airpoft Lease or any amendments thereto previously executed by Lessor and
Lessee. All terms and conditions remain in full force and effect.

This consent to assignment of lease will not release the Assignor from obligauons
under the Airport Lease should the new Lessee default. In the event of the default
of the Assignee, the lease agreement shall revert to the Assignor'

City of Palmer

Date
athan E. Wallace, City Manager

STATE OF AI.ASKA

THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT

The foregoing Consent to Assign ment of Pro
is S56 6, of f{V,.r . 2016. bv

prietary Lease
was acknowledged before me th
\lo$ao. L \oa\arr

Notary Public in and for Alaska
My Comm

ilr ltLilillilililil1tillil

Irt
^rrrr;'ulIt.,5

rrcc-.tir.I26,20tt

eRecorded Document

Expires: g5 lu

5of5
2016-010733-0

)
)ss:
)

G\.,r, .*o a,>-n,'ito-.

Page 15 of 136



L
A
S
K
A

2016-0to733-o
Recording Dist: 3'l 1 - Palmer
5/3112016 10:39 AM Pages: 1 of 5

l ]lilililIililtilil ilil ilililil1111ililililililflilffiilililililil til

@ ASSIGIYMENT AND ASsI]MPTIoN oF PRoPRIETARY LEASEms"
2-bC/.D<17 -s- 

-

THIS ASSIGNMENT AND ASSI.]MPTION OF PROPRIETARY LEASE AND TRANSFER
OF CERTIFICATE OF MEMBERSHIP (the "Assignment") is made and entersd into and effective as of
the 26dt &y of May, 20 I 6, by and betrveen DAMD R. ALLEN, an unmarried person, ("Assignor"), whose

ad&ess is 20207 Paul Revere Circle, Eaglo River AK 99577, and JOSHUA NANCE, a married person,
("Assignee'), whose address is 222E S. Austin Circle, Palmer AK 99645.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Assignor is currently the lessee, by Assignment and Aszumption recorded July 15,

2013, Reception Number 2013-015245-0, under that oqrtain Proprietary L,€as€ Ag€ement (the "Lrase")
between Assignor and Palmer Hangars Ovmers Association, dated October 5,2007, recorded October 22,

2007, Reception Ntmber 2007-027127-0, with respect to certain airplanc hangar space described as

Unit No. 4, I.ot I l, Block 3, Preliminary Plat for the Palmer Municipal Airpor! Palmer
Recording Districl Third Judicial Distict, State of Alask4 and

\VffiREAS, by mesne Assignments Palmer Hangars Ownen Associalion obtained a lease from
the City ofPalmer at the Palrner Airport as to the following described property

Lot l l, Block 3, Plat for the Palmer Municipal Airyort, Palmer Recording District, Third
Judicial Disticg State ofAlaska;

Secdon l. Assiqtrment ofProorletrrv L€rse snd Trrnsfer ofCertif,cate ofMembcnhio.
Assignor hereby grants, tansfsrs, conveys and assigns to Assigpee all ofhis right, title and intercst as Irss€e
under the Proprietary Lease and Certificate of Membership, and Assignee ac.c€pts such assignm€nt, and

exccpt as provided in Section 2 below, assumes all obligations of Assignor thereunder, as of the effective

Dalrymplc Law, P.C. . 927 S. Cobb Stre€t, Palmer AK 99645 . 907-745{332 . wvw.matsulaw.com
Assignment and Assumption ofProprietary L€ase and Transfer ofCertificate ofMenbership, Page I

eRecorded Document

and all terms and conditions of said Airport Lease and compliance therewith apply to this Assignment and
Assumption of Proprietary Lease and Transfer Of Certificate Of Membership, all as more fully set fordt
in said Proprietary Lease; and

WHEREAS, Assignor desires to assign his right, title, and interest under dre Proprieary Lease to
Assigneo, and further tansfers ths Certificate ofMembership in and to said Unit 4, and Assigne€ desb€s to
accept and assume the right, titl€, and interest of Assignor under the Proprietary L,ease and Certificate of
Membenhip;

NOW TmREFORD, in consideration of thc foregoing and the covenants and agreements
conrained herein, the parties agee as follows:

Page 16 of 136



date ofthis Assignment, Except as provided in Section 2 with respect to Claims (as such term is hereinafter

defined), Assignee shall defen4 indemnif and hold harmless Assignor fiom and apinst all Claims arising
or occurring under the Proprietary Lease and Certifrsate of Membership after the effective date of this

Assignment.

Section 2, Continued Liabilitv of A$isnor. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section I

above, Assignor expressly agrees that he shall remain liable for all obligations and claims (dre "Claims"),
including, but not limited to, indemnity obligations, arising or occurring under the Proprietary Lease and

Certificate of Membenhip prior to fte effective date of this Assignmen! irrespective of whether a Claim is

made after the effective date of this Assignment. Assignor shall defend, indemni! and hold harmless

Assignee from and against such Claims.

il lilliltlilllllllllllll
2 ol5

2016-01 0733-0

Section 3. Permits. Laws. and Taxes,

3.01. The Assignee shall acquire and maintain, in good sanding, all permits, licenses and other

entitlements necessary to the performance under this Agreement. All actions uken by the Assignee

under this Agr€ement shall comply with all applicable statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations,
including, but not limited to the Palmer Municipal Code, and all state and/or federal laws and

regulations. The Assignee shall pay all taxes pertaining to his performance under this Agreement.

3.(D. In accordance with and in keeping with Article 3, compliance with Airport Lease, of the

Palmer Hangers Ovmers Association ProprieAry Lease with George J. Gallagher and Peggy J. Gallacher

recorded Oitober 22, 2007, Reception Number 2007-027127'0, the Assignee acknowledges his

understanding of and agrees to be bound by and to comply with all terms of Palmer Municipal Airport
Lease Agreement No, 05-02 (The Airport Lease), as if a lessee thereunder. The Assignee also

acknowlJdges and agrees his rights under this Proprietary Lease are invalid and ineffective unless and

until the City of Palmer executes a consent to transfer the Proprietary Leas€ as set forth in the Airport
Lease, and the Assignee, in writing agrees to be bound by the terms and conditions ofthe Airport Lease.

Section 4. Other IostrumentdActions. The parties agree to €xecute such furdrer r€asonable

instruments, to tak" rrch finther rc*onable actions, and to make any additional rcasonable oznsfers m

may be necessary to carry out the purpose and intent ofthis Assignment.

Section5. Miscellaneous.

5.01. Goveroins LaflRemedie.e, This Assignment and 0re rights of the Parties under it will be

govemed by and6ffiEIl respects in *cordance with the lsws of the State of Alaska and the City of
Palmer witrout giving effect to principles or provisions thereof relating to choice of law or conflict of laws.

In any action to Jnfoie the prwisions ofthis Assignment, the prevailing party shall be entitled to rcasonable

attomey fe€s and cout cosb.

5,02. Waiver/Amendments. Any waiver must be in writing, and any waiver by any-party of a

breactr ofany provision ofttris essignment shall not operate as or be constted to be a waivcr ofany other

breach of that irovision or of any breach of any other provision of this Assignment. The.failure of a party

to insist upon sbict adherence io any rc.. oi this Assignment on one or more occasions shall not be

considerpd a waiver or deprive that party of the right thereafter to insist upon stsict adherence.to that term

or any other term ofthis Assignment. This Assignment shall not be altere4 modified or othenvise amended

Dalrymplc Law, P.C. ' 927 S. Cobb Steet, Palrner AK 99645 '907-?45'6332 '\dww.matsulsw com

essignrnent and Assumption of hoprietary Lease and TrEnsf€r ofcertificare of MembershiP' Page 2

tI

eRecorded Document

Page 17 of 136



or any otler term ofthis Assignment. This Assignment shall not be altere4 modifie.d or otherwise amended

except by an instrument in writing signed by both parties.

5,03. Bindinq Effech Assioment This Assignment and all ofthe provisions hereofshall be

binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective succ€ssors and permitted

assigns.

5,04. No Portnenhip. Joint Venturr. Etc. Nothing in this Assignment shall be intended or

deemed to create a partnenhip, joint venture, association, or other similar relationship between the parties

her€to.

s.lxt, No Thlrd Psrtv Beneficisries. This Assignment do€s not create, and shall not be

construed as crtating any rights enforceable by any Person not a party to this Assignment.

5.06. Scvenbilitv, If any provision of this Assignment or any application tiereofshall be held

inratid, illegal or unenforceable, the remainder ofthis Assignment or any other application ofsuch provision

shall not be affected thereby.

s.fi. Counterpsds. The Assignment may be executed in one or more countelparts, including

by facsimilg all of which counterparts taken together shall constitute one and the seme instrument.

IN WTIIYESS WIIEREOF, the parties have executed this Assignment 8s of the date and year firsl

written above.

ASSIGNORT

4.x,zz--
DAVIDR.ALLEN

STATE OF ALASKA

TI{IRD JUDICI,AL DISTRTCT

)
) ss.

)

The foregoing instrument wos acknowledged before me on May 26, 2016, by DAVID R' ALLEN'

Notary Pu ln
T!,?;!Yt_a:_,,,sMy Commission

Dalrymple Law, P.C. '927 S. Cobb SEeet, Palmer AK 99645 '907-745-6332' w\r'w'matsulaw qom

Assiffient and AssumPtion of hoprietary Lease and Transfer of Certificate of Memb€FhiP, Pagc 3

tll illlillllll lillillllllil

';,ffi*

3of5
2016-010733-0eRecorded 0ocument

Page 18 of 136



&NEE:

NANCE

STATE OF ALASKA

THIRD JUDICI,AL DISTNCT

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on M ay 26,2016,by JOSHUA NANCE

Notary in and for Alaska
My Commission Expires: //-.2,r'zolE

t-

)
)
)

t",:,;ffi:.f,..S
=*.-'- 

%?

Record in Palmer Rerording Distriot.
Retum to:
JOSHUANANCE
2228 S. Austin Circle
Palmer AK 99645

Dabymple Law, P.C. . 927 S. Cobb Street, Palrner AK 99645 ' 901'745-6332' www matsulaw com

l"-i6"1-t *a'xrumption of propriaary Lease and Transfer of certificate of Membership, Page 4

ili illilillll lllllllll ll lI
4of5

2016-010733-0eRecorded Documenl

Page 19 of 136



/City of Palmer o Palmer Municipal Airport
231 W. Evergreen Ayenue o Palmer, AK 99645

Phonei 907-745-327L Fax: 907-745-0930

COI{SENT TO ASSIG NM ET{T

In consideration of and in reliance upon the above assumption and promises

contained in this insuument, the City of Palmer hereby consents to the foregoing
Assignment and Assumpuon of Proprietary Lease and Transfer of Certificate of
Membership of Unit 4, Lot 11, Block 3, Plat for the Palmer Municipal Airport, Palmer
Recording District, Third ludicial District, and State of Alaska from David R. Allen,
("Assigno/) to Joshua Nance, ("Assignee).

Current Palmer Municipal Lease No 05-02 (l-he Airport Lease) is in Effect. Except
as otherwise expressly stated herein, nothing in this consent to assignment of
proprietary lease is intended to amend or alter any of the terms and conditions of
the Airpoft Lease or any amendments thereto previously executed by Lessor and
Lessee. All terms and conditions remain in full force and effect.

This consent to assignment of lease will not release the Assignor from obligauons
under the Airport Lease should the new Lessee default. In the event of the default
of the Assignee, the lease agreement shall revert to the Assignor'

City of Palmer

Date
athan E. Wallace, City Manager

STATE OF AI.ASKA

THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT

The foregoing Consent to Assign ment of Pro
is S56 6, of f{V,.r . 2016. bv

prietary Lease
was acknowledged before me th
\lo$ao. L \oa\arr

Notary Public in and for Alaska
My Comm

ilr ltLilillilililil1tillil

Irt
^rrrr;'ulIt.,5

rrcc-.tir.I26,20tt

eRecorded Document

Expires: g5 lu

5of5
2016-010733-0

)
)ss:
)

G\.,r, .*o a,>-n,'ito-.

Page 20 of 136



A
L
A
s
K
A

I

20()7-O27I.27_o
Recording Dist: 311 - palmer
10122/2007 9:15AM pages: 1 of .14

il fl illiliilltiltilililllillililililililIilil/tililltiltilillililillililillilil 
I illil

PALMER HANGARS OWNERS ASSOCIAT]ON

PROPRIETARY LEASE

AS TO LJNIT NO.._4_

OF THE PALMER HANGARS COOPERATryE

WITTI George J. Gallagher and PeggY J. Gal-lagher

THIS AGREEMENT, madc and cntctcd inlo this 531day of -gctober , 2007. by

and bcrwecrlr Palmcr Hangars Owncrs Associalion (hcreinafl-cr thc 'Association"), I4st9!-g1
Alasko nonorofit corpoiation, of Zl9L9 Barkle. y DrLve Eagle Rlver' AK 99577

and ceorge J. Gallagher aad PeggXr J. Gallagher
of 72LO E Ch"tt"t Ee18ht8 clrcle Anchorage ' A( 99504 '

L.sscc. . 
(hcrriaaficr "Mcmbcr')'

WHEREAS. tirough Dcclaraat- thc Association oltaincd a lcasc from the City of Palmer
at thc Palnicr Airport (hcrcinaflcr "Airpon Lcasc') u to thc following described propaty
(l:crcinafi cr iLcascd Prcmiscs") :

Lot I I, Block 3, on the preliminary plat for thc Palmcr Municipal Aipon.
Palrher Recordlng District, Third .judiclal DiEtrj.cr, Srare of A:l.aska
WHEREAS, Dcclsranl construclcd an aircrafl hangar facjlity (hcrcinaffcr "Palmcr

Hsngars" on thc Lcsscd Prcmiscsi and

WHEREAS, Ihc Association was formcd for the purposc of opcrating a leaschold
coolJcra(ivE undcr Lhc Alaska Common InrErcst Ovnsrship Act (AS 14.0i) as ro thc palmcr
Hangars. with lhc intcnl that Associ.tion Mcmbcrs shsll havc the right roroccupy and usc lhe
Palmcr Hangin and is individual units undcr thc rcrms and condirions hcrcinaflcl sct forth: and

WIJEREAS, this Ag.cmsnr is a Proprictary Lcasc as dcfincd by AS 3a.08.990(25). aod
anachcd hcrcto as Exhibit A is a Cenificatc of Mcmbcrship lo which this proprictary L€sc
appertainsi

NOW, THEREFORE. for valuablc considcrarion paid to Dcclaran(. palmer Hangars.
LLC, reccipt of which is hcrcby acknowlcdged. and in considcrarion of thc mulual oro.ir",
containcd hcrcin, thc Associatio n .hcrcby subleeses to the Mcmber, and rlc MJmbcr hcrcby lskcs
Eom rhc Assoc,iation, Unit No, 4

To HAvE AND To HOLD said unil unto thc Mcmbar, his cxrcuton, administrators and
aurhorizcd Ti!g"r' on tbc rc,,ns and condirions scr fonh hsrcin. commgnciDg on tre dale or this
Proprictary tg"t". -o rcrminating on Junc 30, 2025. unress rermilaled trrier as providcd
hercir! or cxtcndcd ar providcd by thc Airport Lcase.

q.-

Page 21 of 136



capirslizcd rsrms contlineJ in this pruprietary Lcasc sha[ havc Ore same definitions and
meanings set forfi in the Declararion.

ARTICLE 2

ARTICLg I

DE IT I ONS

ME MBER'S RI G TITS

In return ror thc Mcmbcr's conlinued furfiflmenr or rhc tcrms and conditions of this
Proprictary Lcasc, thc Associarion covcnants that the Mgmbff may. ar alr tim ." whilc this
|ropriersry Leane ranains in effesr, havc and anjoy for tle Mcmba,s solc uss and bcnc6t thc
unil abovc dcsoibcd, and rnay trrjoy in common witlr all otbsr Mcrnbcrs of thc Associrtion thc
use of all comrnon comm unity propcrty and faci)irics.

Tlrc Mcmbcr ocknowlcdga his undcrsrranding of and agrocs to bc hound by and to
comply wirtr all rcrms of Lhc Airpon Lcasc as if a lcsscc t}creundi. Thc Mcmbcr acknowlcdces
his riglts undcr this Proprictary Lcasc arc rubjecr to rhc Airpon L-ca-sc. The Member iso
acknowlcd{es and agrccs hir rights undct this propriaary Lcasc rrc lnillia ana incfrectivc
unlcss and irnril rhc. ciry ol Palmcr crcurcs 8 conscnt ro proprietsry Lcasc as sc1 rorrh in rlrc
Airpon Lcapc. aad thc Mqnber. in e/ririn& agrecs to bc bound by Lbc r?fils and coodirions of thc
Airyon Lcife.

' 
^RT.ICLE 

4

Thc Msmbcr sgrees to prcsswc and promotc thc coopcrative owoqrship principlas on
which rhc lssociarion has becn found cd. Thc Mcmber acknowrcdgcs his undcntandingof and
a€rcr:s ro bi bound by and to cornply with al, of th. tclrms of lhc DeclErsrion, e,n'iclcs of
ln@lporarion, Bylrws. rulcs snd regularions of thc Association, und any omcndmcrrG and
!ddilions thcrsto.

^ 
RTICLE 5

MPLJ
RU TI ON

USE D OCCUPA NCY OF PRE MISES

Tlc M eobcr sharr ulirizc thc unit for himscrland./or his gu6ts and invilecs. subjcsr ro rhc
followins rcitriclions:-l

The uniB may bc uscd lor any 1'.1sp,653 authorized or rllowcd undcl ihe Airpon L_cesc-
Thc uniis shall not be uscd lor any unluwful purposc or for ury purpol. o, ,ri th"t -oy
PROPR IF I AAY LTASE
P^ I.M ER HANGARS OW}TERS ASS(^-_IATION
Prg. 2 of 9

trtI I ll lll I I II ll tI[ i,r

. ARTICLE 3
COMPLIANCE WITH 

^IRPO&T 
LEASE

Page 22 of 136



conslitutc a nuisrncc or hazsrd lo heallh. sr[ct].or propgflv. Thc uniLs shall nor bc ucd or
occupied fo1 ?ny purp-oJc. in violation of any lsw. lawful ordcr, or rulc or rcgu)ation concsming
rhe opsrztion or uss orPalm." Airport, No unit may bc used lor any rcsidcnriril occupancy.

Ll
Thc M crnbcr shalr nor psrmir or suffcr anyhing ro be donc or kcpr upoD tle common

inrsresr comihuniry which will incrcasc rhc rerc ol insurancc on thc building or on thc coor6rts
rh(,cof. or lhich will obstrird or intcrl'.rc with rrc righrs of otha occuponf,, or annoy thcrn by
unrcasonabli noiscs or otherrvisc, nor wiil hc commir o, p6mil any nuisancc on r.he com-on
thrcrcsr community, or commit or sufrcr any illegal acr ro bc comrnittcd thcrcon. lf by rciuon or
Ihc rrsc of rhc premiscs by thc Mcmbcr lhc rarc of insurance on hc building shall bc increased,
tlc Mernbcr shall bccomc yrcrsonally liablc for thc eddirional irsurancc prcmruns.

ARTICLE 6

ALTERA'r'ONS 
^ND 

ADDITTONS

Thc Mcn:br agrccs to comply ',ith tlrc archircctural srandards ser our in he Doclarsrion.
Thc Mcmbcr shall no\ without tlrc prior wrincn cons.nr orlhc Associstion, iri"t" -y structurtl
atrcrstions on thc prcrnises or in thc w!r"r, gu or pipcs, crcctrical cooduils, i:lumbing or othcr
fixtur* conDcclcd thcrcwith, or rcrnovc ony oddirioru, improvrrncnts or firturis from tic unit_

lf thc,Manbcr for rny reason abandons thc unit, hc shsll su,,E d., ro lhc Associarion
posscssion Lhcrcof. including any altcr€tions, additions. fixturcs and improvemcnts.

ART]CLE 7

TRANSFER OF I NTEREST

. .ft: Mgnbcr may trsrsfr his rights and membcrship. but only as sllowcd hcrcin and
und.q thc Dcclirration. 

.Tranrfcr of r Mcanbe/s right under rhis propricury Lca-sc rcquires p,nor
wdhcn conscnr by thc Associarioo, which corLrsol wirr rcquirc mmprianci wirl ar rerms oi this
Proprictary !i-1c. nlfmcnr of all amounts owcd ro thc Association, and cxccurion by thc
transfarcc of i Propriaary Lcasc. 

- 
Transfcr of the Msrnbcr's nghts is also suhjcct to ,*i.i ncn

conscnr by thi Ciry of palmer. which consent will rcquirc crlution of c.nrin Oo*,,is,
including a corusnr ro Propri"rary Leasc (Exhibit E ro Dccranrion) ani T..minarion oi
Propricrary Leasc (Eltribir G to De.lsr8tion).

ARTICLE 8
I\TANAGEMENT. TAXES AND TTIS URANCE

I

. Thc Aisociation shall providc necFsrry m8nlgsrDcnl, opcration 8nd Ndministr8tion of
thc. common iirtcrEst communitf. p8y or providc for thc poynml of rll tar6 or ass6smenB
Isvrcd EBatnSt any COmmOn arcas Ofthc common inlgrcst communiry. procurc lnd pay or providc

1:: ln: l:-C' of firc insuralcc snd cxrcndcd covsraBc, and orhcr insurinc.., ,"quir"Oiy _l
mortg8gc on propcfly in lhc commoo intsrest community. and such othcr, inswancc as th€
Associarion niay decrn advisabrc on rhc propcny in thc iommon inracst communiry. Thc

PROPRIETA.R.Y UE^SE
PAIMER H N6ARS OWNERS ASSOCIATION
Prgc 3 of9

Page 23 of 136



Associatiori wi'nol, howcver. orovidc insurancc on ure Mcmber's r'lcrcst ro *rc unit or on thcMcmber's parsonol propcny.

The Associerion shall providc sccca_s to clccu.icity for thc unil, and may provide water.scwer. trash rcmoval and ot,sr utilitics if ir dcems ,i,'",r-r""-""U. aDd sppropristc. ThcMcmbcr shall pay dircctly for eJectriciry and all othcruiiii,i*-"*i'p.""Ocd by rhc Assocratior\afid all pcrsonsl and proprty t8r cs arscsscd on lhc unit.

ARTICLE 9
LTTILIT rEs AND TAXES

ARTICLE I O
COMlvt NEXPENS ES

"^__^li:-fT!o "f= r.". ply lo thc Associarion ,h. Mcmbcis pIoporlionstc sharc of rhccommon cxpcns.., as 
.defincd in rhc Dcclararion and dercrrnincd U" ti. A."JJ ;f ;;;. 

,;.
corunon crpqrse shall includc, bur nor bc limitcd lo, the fo owili ifcrns:

(a) Thc msrs ofrll m8nlgcmcnl operation snd administration of fic conunon inicrcsr

f.;;ur,r, 
and rclatcd serviccs tumishcd, including plymcnrs on rhc Airporr

(b) Thc cost ofany ncccssary rcpain rnd rcstoration to rhc Arsocidtioo,s propcfiy;

(c) Thc rmount of all tr.xcs and asscssmcnts lcvicd againsl thc mmmon intcrclcomrnunity, including thc building whigh Oc ersociaiion is oUf igat"O io p"yl-.-'
(d) Thc cosl of firc and 

.dxtendcd coveragc insurancc on Orc common inrcreslcommunity and such othsr insurancc as lbc Associetion mey cfIc.cl or ss may bcrcquircd by any mo gagc on thc common int.rcst 
"orni*l r1,';

(c) ThE cosr ofobtaining or furnishing any utirirics as scrviccs rslated to tle common!nc8s:

(0 Alr r."erv.. scr up by thc Board or Dircctors pcnai ng ro rhe common inrcr-rcommunit;4

(e)

(h)

PROPR]ETARY LFJSE
P^I.ME,R,'IANGA.&S OWNERS ASSOCIATION
Pltc 4 of 9

I:::rr.:: cosr of futurc 
_rcpairs. mainrcnance and replac<*r cn rs. or Capilslrmflrovsmcnt AssesmcnB of thc commoo inrcrcst communiry fap"ray ,o U,made by thc Association;

Any othcr crpcnscs of thc Associalion approvcd by the Board of Dircctors.iiclr.rding operating dcficicnciss. if any, for prior pcriods: and

Page 24 of 136



(i) All otho common crpcnsc! sct oul irr thc Dcclararion.

. Thc Board of Dirccton shsll dctcmtine the amount ofthc
but may do sb.r .or. alr.r,r inrervsrs shourd circumstanccs;;i1Tl"l,IfiHLiilli',J;
3,!arqcd lith-ryrc than his proponionorc stu,o rt.r"of * acrilinca ry thc Board of Direcron.Ttc Board of Dircsron shalt dcrermrnc the liming .r prd;;i;i;;" **on cxpeDscs.

ARTICLE I 
'SPECIAL ASSESS]VIENTS

. -Tl'c 
Mcmbcr agrcrs lo pay all special A5s6smcnts rnd such otrcr amounts, as sct fofl.bin the Dcclaration-

ARTICLE I2
LATE C RGES AND OTH ER COSTSINCASE OF DEFA ULT

Thc il4crnbcr "gre6 th6t, in addition ro Lhc orhtr s ms that havc bcLrne or will bccomcu

lf r Mimber dcfauls in making a prymenr of Common or Spccisl AssFsrntrrrs. or in rlcprrforma,cc or obscwancc of anv pro'',ision-of this agrc.-.nl anJ *,c Assocrarion r.,*.u,rJthc scrviccs ofany anorney *ith ,cspccl ro t}lc dafsujts invo;y"6, ,5" Msirbcr covenanr< q^,t
.grcls lo psy to lhc Associltio, any cosLs or fccs involvcd, including ;";i;; ;;;;:;r;notwithstanding thc fEct rhrr r suir hzs nor ycr be",r inrr;r"rJ.-ln L. u ,,!;, i, i"r,in1ra.ll.Mcmbcr shaJI rlso pay thc costs of thc suit in addition to othcr aforcsaid cost' ard fccs.

duc. pursuan I to the terms of this A grc.snsnr, tbc Mcrnb; shaJl pay ro ti. Associarion a lalcchargc in 8n amounl lo be detamined from timc to timc by thc Eoard of Dircctors lor cachpoymtnt of Con:rnon or Spccial Asscssmcrts, or pul thcfeoi more 6an t?n (l 0) d8ys in ar:cars

^ 
RTICLE I ]

IND EMN IT}, AND H OLD RMLESS

ARTICLE I4
SUBORDINATION CLAUSE

Thc common intercst cammunity., of which rhc unit is a pafl_ rs losrcd on rcal propcnyovzncd by the ciry of psrmsr and lcrascd ro thE Associarion-- rt. p*i". herero agrcc rhat thisAgrccrncnt ,,d all rigl,ts, privilcges and bcncfits hsrcundcr arc anO shalt bc,r ,ll li;; s,.rijcct i;
PROPRIETARY, LEASE
P LM ER I IANGARS O\vNELS 

^SSCCIATIONPrgc 5 of 9

. To thc fuJl cxrcnr psrmincd by. law,. rhc Mcmbcr agreo ro indamnify and hold harmless
*:^Y:lr]'",.l;:1.-Tg ""* :6:.Mqmber of rhc a"J;"*,, ,i, Dcctarsnr, and rlrc Ciry ofraJmsr rom Eno lglilst any and all losscs, claims. damagcs. Iiabilirics and oUi;g.,;o*.,iL;kind or nanrrt' incruding rcasonshrc a.omcy's r"* rtJ ;;;, ;;ing our or o, rcraring in any
:-.]l: ,h. usi or occupancy of the Mcrnbcr'i unir or rhc f 

"f 
n.,', Hung* commoo arqas, limircdcorrunon arc&i or facilitics.

Page 25 of 136



and subordinarc to rhc r?aschord rigtrs or rhc ciry of palmcr, and arso ro aoy morrgsgc or dccd oflrusr which may st any rime hcreaficr.be placj on ,1" p_n"nlt,h, nir;r;;.i;;;,;;;;thcrcof. Thd Merobcr hercby Egr.cs to exccutc, at thc Association,s ,cgucst and cxpcnsc, anyins'lmcnt qhich thc Associsrioo or thc Ciry of pslm." ,,. i"y i""0, m8y dc,,n ncc*ssry ordcsioblc to iffccr rhc subordinarion of this'Agreanant _J',i. f,,f"rU, hrrcby appoints thcAssocialion Jnd cach urd cvcr.y oflicer U)c.*f,""na u"y"ni;;";"-. his ilicvoeblc slomcy_in-facr durinI thc tcrm hcrcofio cxccurc aDy such instnrmcnr on bcharf of ttrc Member. ThcMcmber do{ hercby 
-crprcssry 

u."i"c any ani aJr ,:"ri;;;;;;;ir 
"no 

,ori""s of temination ofthc. A irporr 
!-pg53 or forccrosurc of any mongagc 

"r 
d".d;i;;';; rhc Associsrion,s rcascholdwhich may bi requircd by law,

In thc cvsrl a waivcr of such noticcs is not legally valid, lhe McrDbe? does hsrcbvconstirurc thc Associslion his agcnr ro rcccivc and r."p,rlr*inoti.o;;;'ffiil;Rff.f:",
A.RTICLE I5

DEFAULT B Y MEM BER

Any of rhc following sycnls shall constitutc a dcfaultby thc Mcmbcr;

(a) Thc Mcmbq ccsscs (o bc thc own6 aod tegal hotda ofa mcrnbcrship in
0rc Associalion:

(b) Thc Mcmbcr aticmpls lo lrsnsfcr oI assigl his int
incossistcnt widr tbc provisions of thc bcclaiatioa or A

crcsl in a m&nnct
rport Lcasc:

(c)

(d)

(c)

(0

(e)

rh)

rnorn:era-nv i.e-,.se
PAIMER HA-l.rOA-R S OwNERS ASSOCT^TtON
Fagc t( of9

Anyimc during thc I erm of this Agrccmcnr rhc Mlmbsr js dcclared
banJcupr undcr r}c taws of rhc Unitod sures. .r..p, J;,iii"'LIr"n, orthc Board of Dircctorsi

Arylime during lh? tErm of thig Aglccmsnt a rcccivrr of r}e Molhcr,spropcry is appointcd undcr any of rhc laws 6f thg gr;1i,j Stato or of any
stEtc, sxc.pl with the consenr of thc Board of Dirccton:

Thc Mc'nbq makcs a gcncral lssignmcnt for flc bcnc6t of crrdilon:

Thc M6nbsr's intaest in thc coopcrative is levicC upon and sold undcr theprocGs of Dny court;

Thc Mcmbcr fails ro pay any sum owed to Ore Association uod6 thisProprictary Leasc, thc Dcclaration or othcrwisc; or

Thc Mcmhq fails ro ahjde hy thc tcrms of rhis proprrcrEry Lcssc. thcAirpo( Lcasc. rhc Dcclararion. o, thc asrociarj-i e^;il: a]i-.,r, o,'nrlcs and rcgulations in cffcct at the umc.

Page 26 of 136



Upon dcflult- thc Associstion nlly at its option givc to thc Mcmbc, I notic€ thBl UisPropricrary Lcasc wilt crprrr al I darc noi less u,-' r"n 1iq aoyr'i;r;fi;i. ,;;;;;:::*;so procccds' a' of thc Mcmbcr's rig}rs undcr rhis pmpricrary Lcalc *i)l irpir. on u" 
-a-urc'ro

lircd- in such noticc, unrcss in lre msanrime he defsurt hai brcn crred in a marurcr dccmedsatisfscrory by rhe Associalion. tt is thc inrcntion of rlrl;;;;";;",;"il",:iT:;
conditional limiradons, and it shall t-hercupon U. fr*fri fo, ,f,Jir*,,"uon to rE nreT rhr ,,nirand lo evict all pcrsons and lrersonal propcay thdefrom ;r-,rr" ,r-.lr_"; os"ffi[:i't; ";lirr ca5g s;.r ua.lawful 5s;6eyc, hy a. commercia) ren-l frrthcr,-i, rt" .i,.ni 

,oiu 
a-jf. j.i. ,i,"Associsrion shs, bc cnrirrcd ro a, olha rcrncdics ser forrh in ttlc'iectar",iJn o. *";iJi. ,ni",law,

Thc Iailurc on thc pan of ihc Association to avail itself of aly of r}c remedies givenundcr this AF csmcnt or ar lar' shrll rror waivr o, ,f.srrof ,i" nji of ,i,. Associ8ljon to availiself of ruch lcmedics for similar or othcr brc€chcs o, if," p* "ifi" fr4"rnUr.

A.RTICLE I6
NOTICES

wherevcr thc provisions of raw. t,c Decrararion or this propriersry Lcase rcquire noticelo bc givcn to thc oth6 pany hcrcro, any noric! by thc Associaiion to thc Manrbcr shaJr bcdecrncd to haic bccn duly givgn. ,n t.any dcmand Ui tf," lr*J"rj"" upon rlic Mcmbcr shall bcdecmcd ro. ha1,c becn duly made, if rhc samc i, d"ri";;',;; Mqmber ar.rhc Mcrnbc/s rasrtnown 6di1ss$; and any noricc or dcmand by rhe rr,'--J," ,l.lr-"",r"" 
"iar'u.'i*r""il"havc bccn dul! givcn if dclivcrcd ro the ot[cc 

"f 
rf,. artA'.':"n.';;,1;ilil;J*j,;J;

depositing sanic in rre unircd Srarcs mair, and rr'" ,i,n" ,i."iii"g sha., bc dccmod to bc thc rimcof gidng of sLch notice

ARTICLE I7
REPR SENT A IO

ARTICLE,s
REITT ED I ES

s

No rcprecrtstions othcr than thost cxprxsly contrincd in lhis Agreemenl, lhe
3ff"a'#IJ}J*:lcs of lncorporation and tlc'Bvtais o] r.r,.'i"ro";u,ion sbalr bc binding

Thc cxcrcisc of any of 6:.d*hl. or remcdies as hcrein providcd wirh rqspcct lo snydc[sulr shall nor prcclude or afrect rhc subscqucrl cxcrcisc ofsuchighs or rqrocdies at diffcrenrtimes for differsnt defaults.

T}e respcclivc righrs or remciics wh,erhcr provided by this Agrcemcot or by law oravailable ia eqiriry, shall bc cumujative. and the cxercise oi;; ;"" or morc oI such rigbrs or
PRopRIET^Ry lEAsE
PALMER HANGA.R,S OWNERS ASSOCIANON
Prgc 7 of9

/.__--.Page 27 of 136



rcmcdigs shall nol prccluda or arTcd thc crcrcisc. Bt th. same or Jt diffcrqnl lirn6. of !n),othcrne,hls or rcmcdjcs for t),c samc or dilTercnr dcfaulrs, or for',i" r"rn" or drffcrcnr fajlurc of rhcMcrnbcr rn pcr{orm or obscrvc qny provi5ion ol rhis f grcemcni 
'-'

A RTICLE I9
CENOER RErERENCE

Any rcfcrrrcc ro the r,ord .his..hqrein 
shall hc intcrprclcd to,c.ad and mcan thc word'lr.i" rn lhc dv.nr thc Membcr is fcmale. and thc *ord .ri;r:; ihc cvcnl thc Mcmbsr is ac oup lc

A RTICLE 20
GO vERlrrNG LAw

This Prop.ietary Ltose shall bc go,crncd by Ala.sks law

IN wITNESS WHEREOF, lhc parii6 ha,c cruscd rh.is A grccrncnr ro bc signcd thc dayrnd ycor firsr abovc wriltcn.

P^ LMER HANO^ s o \r'4'r E
Asso IAT N

Dat... tOlSlOT

Darc. Lnt\lo7 __

ai

By

STATE OF ALASKA )

)ss
THIRD JUDICIA L DISTRICT )

-Trea6urer

Q)\
Norary Pub Iic in and lor Alo-ska:

THIS lS TO CERTTFY rh.r on rh( 5th 6,, oi October )nrv L-r^_-undsrsiprcd. s Nor&ry publrc ;n . tvu , u.:rurc

perrcnally apfcarcd 
8nd lor Lhc srare of Aleslr- duly' c'o'mmissioocd a'nd

IErrY Angel and Y11liaE lordhau

to mc known lo bc thcPresldent and Secretary/Treagurer ' resPectlvely

Hanga6 Qwns6.Asiociarion. rhc corporarion namcd abovc. snd krro,vn ro mc ro b. ;: :*Tnumcd hcron o,nd who crecurcd rhc [orcgoing pROpRIETARy LEASE for and on bchallof said

:,1*"]i^" 
by authcnrv 

i:ly vTrul in him, and Ecknowledgcd rhal hc signcc rhc ssmr as hrslrcc and volunlalrv ec1 and dcd. for thc uses rnd ou.mses tlercin sa forth..

GIvEN UrOr^ My HAND and ofTicial scal rhc day and ycar Iasr wrincD sbovc

mc thc
swom.

I

Ii OTR] EI,^R Y LE SE
n^LV Ec H NCARS O',vN ELS 

^ 
S SC(l^T rON

PrS. I or q

ofFtcrar. sEAL

TerrillVes
03-zt-2010

ley
4ts.&.xot ry Psbl+stsb ol

Ccrnm.
My commission cxoircs

Page 28 of 136



Date; LOl5lOT

STATE OF ALASKA )

)ss
rH lR-D JUDTCTAL DISTRICT )

G€orge

NorEry Public in fot A laska
My commission cxpircs: _

THIS lS TO CERTrFY that on thc 5rh day of Ocrober , 2007, bcfore mc tbc
undcrsigncd, a Norary Public in and for thc sratc of Alaslq duly conrmissioncd and swom.
pcrsonally rppcarcd

George J Gallagher and Peggy J Galtagher

and who. cx6i,rcd rhc ron going p R opR rErAR ; r-l:!|Til.[.t,5r5Tl [i*5il:
samc as his 6cc and vslup157y act ud decd, for thc ules and purposcs thacin mentioncd.

Glvgill tJNpgp lvfy HAND and off ciaJ scal lhe day and yea, hst tr.ritlcn 8bovc.

PROPRIETARY
P^LMER HANG
Frgc I ol9

OfFICIAL SEAL

01232010

TerriWes ley
Aaabt{dary Puuiqs:Lb d

Carnln

LEASE
ARS OwNERS ASSOCT^TtoN

z

Date: 1O/q /07

Page 29 of 136



CONSET.IT TO PROPRIETARY LEASE

Ihc attachod Propriaary Lcasc from Palma Harl'rgars Ownsrs Associarioo (hereinaffcr

"Propriclsry L6sor") lo George J Gallagher and Peggy J Gallagher

(hrrcinaffer -proprictsry Lcsscc,) is hrreby

8cc?pted and approvcd, subjccl to thc tcrms and conditions of lhc origind Airpon Lcssc datcd

Junc 5, 2005. by and bctwcor the ciry of palmcr, Lcssor, and palmcr Hangars, LLC. Lessce, and

subscgucnr amcndments tbcrcto ond &ssignmcnts thcrcof. Said Airporr Lcasc covcrs a psrccl of

land locstci within thc City of Pajmcr. which is dcscribcd as follows:

Irl I I, BlocL J, on thc prclirninary plat for thc palmer Municipal Airpon
(hercinaffcr rcfcncd to as "Leased prcmiscs"),

This Conscnl lo proprictary Lcase pcrtains lo Unil 4 of I}c forcgoing Lcascd

This conscnr is givcn by thc Ciry of pslmsr reithout waiving any right of action or

rclca-sing Proprictary Lcssor or any subscquEnt propriclary L-csso(s) from a-oy liability or

rcsponsibiliry rurdcr the aforcrncrtioncd L.asc, subsc4u.nr smendments frcrito. and assignmcnt

t-hcrco I

ln consideration of lhc conscnt of thc Ciry of palmcr to Lhis proprida-ry lJasc, thc

Proprictary Lcssor uncondirionaly guaranlecs pctformancc by thc proprictary Lcsscc of a[
tcms and condirions of thc aforcmentioncd l,osc, subscquclt ancrrd.mants tl'clo and

assig1nrents lhcrcor.

Ncithei lhis proprici&? Lrcasc nor thc accsptsncc of rsflt by thc Ciry of palmcr from
I

Propricrary Lissec shalr rcrcasc, rcricvc or in a.n y manncr modify thc obrigations of propric., y

Ltssor undcr bc rsrms and conditions of thc Lrasc. subscqucnt smcndmcnrs thcreto and

LrsiE uncnls thcreof,

P rern iscs.

Page 30 of 136



ln coruidaarion of thc consc'|t to the City of palms to this proprictary Leasc, the

Proprietary Lcssec hcreby tgrc"s thar its rights arc suhjcct ro aJl righrs, durics and liabililics of
P ropriclary L,6sor pursusrr ro thc rcrms and conditions of thc aforcmcnrioncd Airpon Leasc,

suhscquent srncndmeflB lh.rsto and assign nrnts thcrcoi.

In cbnsidcrsrjon of thc coossnr of thc City of palmcr, the propricrary L:ssee agrecs to bc

bound by all valid claims and valid dcfcnscs which m8y now cxist or may hereaflcr devclop

heucsD thc City of palmcr and the proprietary Lcssor.

ln coruidgralion of Otc consot of 6c Ciry of lalmc, to this propricla_y Lcasc, tlre

Proprictary L'cssor and propridsry Lcsscc shart cach secure and *ccp in forcc dr:ring thc tcrm of
I

t'his agcemlnt adcquarc iruurencc satisfaaory to thc city of parmcr wiri sn ios,.rcr approved !y
rhc Ciry ol p8lmc, to prolccl thc City ol. palmer, thc Dcclsrant, tic pmprictary Lcssor and

Proprictary Lcssce rgainsl comprchensivc public liabiliry for bodily injury aod property damage.

Thc E nounl oi inr*'n.. rcquircd of rhe proprietlry Lcasor is sct fonh in thc Airport L,casc. The
arnount of insurarcc rcguircd ofLhc proprictary Lcsscc is as follows:

a. if rhc uai t is going ro bc uscd for the non_commcrciar storagc of aircrafl, thc

Proprictary L.csscc musr obLain irsurancc tlat is dccrncd adqutc by thc palmcr

Ciry Couacil 6om rimc to timc, which prcscotly requires commcrcial general

liebiliry insurancc, wilh arrport prvrnises iruurancc 
-rvirh 

a J300,000 singJe

occunmcc )iabiliry Iimil:

b. if rhc unir is going ro bc raed for a small busiocss operation, t}e proprictary

Llsscc mus obrain insuranc.c thar is decmcd adcquar by lhc pdlmcr City Council
&om rimc ro (ime, which prcstntry rcquires commcrciar gcncra) riabilirv

CONSENT TO NROPRJETA.R,Y LE^S E

Page 31 of 136



insurancc. with airpon prcmiscs rnsunncc covoage with 8 S5OO,OO0 singlc

occurrencc liabiliry limit.

The Proprictary Lessor and Proprictary Lcsscc shall cach provide thc ciry or p!lmcr wior proof

oI insurance co.,cr8gc in oc form of a cenificarc of insuraricc prior ro cxccurion of this conscnr

rt, Propriaary Lcasc by t}c City of Palmsr, All insurancc rcquircd by rhis covcnanl sball:

a. narnc tlc City of Palrncr as u additional insurcd:

b, providc t-har t}e City of po.lmer be notificd ar lcasr thirry (lg) d8F prior ro any

tcmination, canccllation or matcrial changc ur thc iruurancc coveragc;

c. includc a waivcr of subrogation by which thc insurcr waivcs aJt rilhts of

subrogation egains thc City of palmcr for paymens madc undcr lhc policyl

d. bc submincd on thc city of parmcr Insurancc Form, arachcd hercto as Ex-b.ibit

'A," with copic of the Dcclaration and Endonerncrit p8gcs snachcd thcrclol ard

c. nol cantain r damrge doductiblc for each and cvcry loss that cxcccds Ooc

Ttousand Dollars (I 1.000).

Nothjng in this consenl is to bc construcd &s 8 rcprEscntalion. rarificarion or approval by

rhc cirv of Palmcf,, cithcr cxprcss or impricd. as ro thc validity of any of thc tcrms. conditions or

provisions of any agrrcmenl .sublcasc and/or assignmcnl documsni b wcco propri ctarl,, L6sor
and Proprigtari Lcarcc.

1..
Norhin! in t}rjs consgnl is to bc construed as € consctr by thc Ciry of palmcr ro any

l

subscquenr Ushssction. Any frrtho modgage. plcdge, hlpothccation, cnqrmbrancc. transfcr.

suDleasc or.:rslgnmcrl (hcreinaflc in Lhis clausc rcferred to collcctively as "encumbrancc,,) of
Lesscc's or subrcsscc's inl erEstB in thc Lcased prcrniscs, or any pan or porrion lhercof. shslr lirsl

CONSENT TO PROFRIETARY LEASE

Page 32 of 136



bc approvcd in wnting by Lcssor. ln rhc cvcnr thgrc rs on crisring propncraly Lcasc or othc,
encumbrBrcs which has not bccn appro\,cd in wnting by Lcssor. such proprictary Lcasc or ot-hqr

cncumbrancc murr bc discroscd rnd conscntaJ ro in wriling by Larrcr prior to $is conscnr to

Proprictary Lcasc bccoming cflcclivc. Fo,lurc to oblajn Lcssor,s rcquired wrilcn approval oI a

pr.ior or subscgueot sncumbraDce will rendcr such errcumbrance ,oidabl< and. al Lcssor,s

clcoion, shall conslitulc a dcfault. Occupa,ncy of U)c k8scd prcm:.scs or sny paJ..t or unir thermf
by e prospccrivg rransfaec. subrcssec or assigncc bcrorc approval of r.h c innsfcr. subrcasc or

EssiEnmcnr by L.cssor shall c.nstitutc 6 brcach of thc Lcase.

lf t-hc Proprictcry Lcsscc harcvndgr is a corporatlon, unrncorF,oratccl assooatio,\

pannership or joinr vqn!u'c' t'hc cncumbranc!, rrans rsr or salc of any srock or intcrest in said

corporation. assosiatjot panrcrship or Jornr venrufc, ln the rg8regslc crcccding twcnty.fivc

Ddcant (25o ) shall bc dccmcd sn assignm Er]t wirhin thc mearing of rhc l,casc.

By signarurc bclo.. gg proprictary Lcssor and proprietary Lcssee acccpt thc lcrms and

condirions hcrcol t-hc propriaary Lcsscc rcknowlcdgcs Lhc lFm5

aforcrnentioncd L.asc, suhssqucnt arnqnd mgnLs thc'clo and assignmints

cooscnt5 lo 0"rc Proprictury Lcasc

PR OP R IETARY LESSOR:

PA LM HA A R\S ERS ?.1

BY
Larry sl1 ordhar

Its ident qtary-Treasurer
OBtc r I o l5lo7

Date: lOl5lOT

STATE OF ALASKA )

)ss
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT )

rnd condirions of Lhc

thctcol and thc Lcssor

THIS lS TO CERTTI.y thol on ric 5thd8y oI october , 2007. bcfore mc rhe
undersigncd. a Norary Public in and for the Statc of Alaskr duly commissroncd a,nd swom.
personrllv opryd Larry Angel and lJirliau Fordhau
to mc lsrou,r to bc lhc Presldent aad Secretary-Treasure r of pslmci
llangars owncrs assoiarion' thc corponlion namcd abovc, and lnown ro mc lo bc rh. psrs{rn
namcd hcrtin and who cxccurcd thc forcgoing CONSENT.TO pROpRIETARy LEASE fo, and
on..bchalfofsgid c.rpora,tjon bv aulhorily duly vqsicd in hirn, gnd ackno*ledgcd ,f.,"i1. 

"g,Jthc samc as his tre! and voruntlry rcl and dccd. for thc usEs tud ourDoscs thsrcin sct fort-tr

am

Its:

Page 33 of 136



PR OPR IETA RY LESSEE

8y
G€orge J. Gallagher

Datc: LOl5l0l

CITY OF PALMER

By

BY

STATE OF ALASKA )
) ss'

THIRD JUDICI^L DISTRICT }

rllls IS ro CERTIFY t}8r on rhr 536 - dry of october _. 2ooz. beforc mc rhcundenigncd, a Notarv puhlic in lnd for iiI-SL,.'oi riffi=arly commissioncd and swom.p"'sonallv lipc'rcd ceorge J. @llaghet ""J-""gi- i @llagber

iden(icot indiwiduar namcd hcrcin rnd *r" [.T,Xi'1nfrI];f""r-t3,Irl"l+'S
PROPRIETARY LEASE, ficcry urd voluntariry, for thc uscs and purposl rhtcin mcntronod.

GlvEf.l gpggp My HAND and official seal thc day and year last Ebovc wrinen,

Da

ST,ATE OF ALASKA )
) ss.

ilrrRD ruDlctAL DISTRICT )

THIS lS TO CERTIIY rhat on rhc 17 day ot
undcaigncd.,a Notary public in and for rhc Slstc of A Ias

Date: 10/5/07

otary Public in and for Alaska
My commission crpires

, 2007 beforc mc thc
a. duly mmmissioncd and s*om,

idcnlical individual

J

penonally appcarcd JANE DAl,E, lo me krown and krorvn to mc to bc thdcssribcd in and who cxccutcd thc within and forcgoing CONSENT TO PROPRIETARYLEASE as Airport Maragcr of thc Ciry of Prlmcz, frccly aad "oluntarily on bctralf of thc City ofPalmer, lor thc uscs and purposcs thcrqin msntioncd

Glvgp g1.JpE* MY HAN and ofl'icial scol tie day and yea, Irsl sbove \r'rinenZ; feL"o'
Afft?

c

OFFICTAT SEAL

TerriWes
03-212010

!ey
Al.8k8xotlry ArHIc€t b ol

Ccfim.

le

Ma ager

1M,,,-

t ^,/. o.-,e^

b"
Nour"i Prrhll.:- --

:

-

:
I

=

Page 34 of 136



From: bspudd66@aol.com
To: joanl@matsutitle.com; Frank Kelly
Subject: PHOA Approval of hangar sale
Date: Monday, March 12, 2018 11:32:43 AM

To: City of Palmer
 
From: Palmer Hangar Owners Association
              Joseph H Bussard - President of PHOA
 
Subject: Notice of Hangar # 4 sale
 
To the City of Palmer: Palmer Hangar Owners Association approves of the sale of Hangar 4, owned by
Josh Nance to Eldon Bell.
 
Any question of approval can be sent to bspudd66@aol.com or call 907-230-6834.
 
Thank you.

Page 35 of 136

mailto:joanl@matsutitle.com
mailto:fkelly@palmerak.org
mailto:bspudd66@aol.com


City of Palmer ● Palmer Municipal Airport 
231 W. Evergreen Avenue ● Palmer, AK 99645 

Phone: 907-745-3271     Fax: 907-745-0930 
 
 

CONSENT TO ASSIGNMENT  
 
In consideration of and in reliance upon the above assumption and promises 
contained in this instrument, the City of Palmer hereby consents to the foregoing 
Assignment and Assumption of Proprietary Lease and Transfer of Certificate of 
Membership of Unit 4, Lot 11, Block 3, Plat for the Palmer Municipal Airport, Palmer 
Recording District, Third Judicial District, and State of Alaska from Joshua Nance, 
(“Assignor”) to Eldon E. Bell Jr. and Holly A. Bell, (“Assignee”).  
 
Current Palmer Municipal Lease No 05-02 (The Airport Lease) is in Effect. Except 
as otherwise expressly stated herein, nothing in this consent to assignment of 
proprietary lease is intended to amend or alter any of the terms and conditions of 
the Airport Lease  or any amendments thereto previously executed by Lessor and 
Lessee. All terms and conditions remain in full force and effect.  
 
This consent to assignment of lease will not release the Assignor from obligations 
under the Airport Lease should the new Lessee default. In the event of the default 
of the Assignee, the lease agreement shall revert to the Assignor. 
 
 
 
     City of Palmer 
 
Date:______________________ ____________________________________ 
     Nathan E. Wallace, City Manager 
 
STATE OF ALASKA   ) 
     )ss: 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT )  
 
The foregoing Consent to Assignment of Proprietary Lease of Unit No. 4 of the 
Palmer Hangars Cooperative was acknowledged before me this _____day of 
April, 2018, by Nathan E. Wallace. 
 
            
      ______________________________ 
      Notary Public in and for Alaska 

My Commission  
 
Expires:_______________ 

 
 

Page 36 of 136



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 18-045 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Action Memorandum No. 18-045 

 
Subject:  Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute a Renewed Agricultural Lease with Ben 
VanderWeele for a Parcel of Land Containing Approximately Five Acres of Airport Land Located on Outer 
Springer Loop 
 
Agenda of: April 10, 2018 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: City Manager 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development    

  Finance 
 

 3/22/18 
  Fire    
  Police     
  Public Works     

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 

 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 271.28 
 

This legislation (√): 
X Creates revenue in the amount of: $ 271.28 
 Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
 Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
X Budgeted Line item(s): 03-00-00-3432 
 Not budgeted   

 
 

Director of Finance Signature:  

Page 37 of 136



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 18-045 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
 Draft Lease Agreement with Exhibit A 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
Ben VanderWeele has been farming on approximately 5 acres of agricultural land owned by the City of 
Palmer, located off the Outer Springer Loop across from the Golf Course and adjacent to his current fields 
in production.  The previous lease expired on December 31, 2017.  This legislation authorizes the City 
Manager to execute a renewed agricultural lease with Ben VanderWeele to perform agricultural operations 
on five acres of airport land, of which said agricultural products are not by nature, bird attractants.  
 
The lease rate of $54.26 per acre was established in 2016 and is based upon the Fair Market Rent for 
agricultural properties at the airport, as determined by the real estate appraisal completed by Follett & 
Associates, July 2010 with an increase in rate determined by the Consumer Price Index for Anchorage of 
11.0% from year end annual(s) 2011 through 2015.    
 
The agricultural leases at the airport are recognized in the Airport Master Plan as a source of revenue and 
thus are in agreement with Federal Aviation Administration Sponsor Assurance #6, “Consistency with 
Local Plans”, #19 “Operations and Maintenance” and #24 “Fee and Rental Structure”.    
 
PMC 3.20.090 allows for two years or less without notice requirement.  The term of this lease is for two 
years. 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
To approve Action Memorandum No. 18-045 for a renewed agricultural lease to Ben VanderWeele. 

Page 38 of 136



 

1 
 

City of Palmer 
231 West Evergreen Avenue 

Palmer, AK 99645 
907-745-3271 

 
PALMER MUNICIPAL AIPORT 

AGRICULTURAL LEASE AGREEMENT No. 18-002 
 
 

This is a lease between Ben VanderWeele, hereinafter “Lessee”, whose address is PO Box 
461, Palmer, AK. 99645, and CITY OF PALMER, an Alaska Municipal Corporation, 
hereinafter, “Lessor”, whose address is 231 W. Evergreen, Palmer, Alaska 99645. 

 
1. Property and Rent.  The property leased hereby is described in Exhibit A attached 

hereto and incorporated herein. The rent shall be $54.26 per acre per year, or 
$271.28. This shall be paid in annual payments of $271.28, per the following schedule: 
Lessee agrees to pay the annual rent for 2018 upon written notification of award by 
the City. The second installment of the annual rent is due on or before July 1, 2019. 
This lease rate is based upon the Fair Market Rent for agricultural properties at the 
airport, as determined by the real estate appraisal completed by Follett & Associates, 
July 2010 with an increase in rate determined by the Consumer Price Index for 
Anchorage of 11.0% from year end annual(s) 2011 to 2015.  

 
2. Term. The term of this lease is from April 10, 2018 until December 31, 2019.  
 
3. Use of Property.  The Property shall be used only for the growing and harvesting 

of agricultural products or hay, which are not in nature, considered bird 
attractants.  If under the sole opinion of the City of Palmer, said crops result 
in a bird attractant and are detrimental to Palmer Municipal Airport and 
aviation activities, at Lessees expense, Lessee will plow agricultural crops 
under within seven (7) days written notice.  Lessee understands that No 
appeal of this decision is possible.  The Property shall not be used for any other 
purpose. 

 
4. Operations on Property.  All operations conducted on the Property by the Lessee as 

incidents of use specified in paragraph 3 of this lease shall be conducted by the Lessee 
in accordance with the best course of agricultural stewardship practiced. Should the 
Lessee fail to take any action required by said best course of agricultural stewardship 
or should the Lessee fail to conduct any operation undertaken by him on the Property 
in accordance with said best course of agricultural stewardship, the Lessor may, after 
serving ten (10) days written notice of such failure on the Lessee in the manner 
provided for service of notices in this lease, terminate this lease.  

 
5. Waste or Nuisance.  The Lessee shall not commit or permit the commission by others 

any waste, petroleum products, or the release of any hazardous material on the 
Property; the Lessee shall not maintain, commit, or permit the maintenance or 
commission of any nuisance on the Property; and the Lessee shall not use or permit 

Page 39 of 136



 

2 
 

the use of the Property for any unlawful purpose. The Lessee shall not maintain any 
equipment or conduct any repairs on the Property. 

 
6. Insurance Hazards.  The Lessee shall not commit or permit the commission of any 

hazardous acts on the Property nor use or permit the use of the Property in any 
manner that will increase the existing rates for or cause the cancellation of any 
insurance policy insuring the Property. The Lessee shall, at his own cost and expense, 
comply with any and all requirements of Lessor’s insurance carriers necessary for the 
continued maintenance at reasonable rates of reasonable insurance on the Property.  

 
7. Maintenance.  The Lessee shall, at his own cost and expense, keep and maintain the 

Property in good order and in as safe and clean a condition as they were when received 
by him from the Lessor. 

 
8. Alterations and Liens.  The Lessee shall not make or permit any other person to make 

any alterations to the Property or to any improvement thereon or facility appurtenant 
thereto without the written consent of the Lessor first had and obtained. The Lessee 
shall keep the premises free and clear from any and all liens, claims, and demands for 
work performed, materials furnished, or operations conducted thereon at the instance 
or request of Lessee.  

 
9. Inspection by Lessor.  The Lessee shall permit the Lessor or Lessor’s agents, 

representatives, or employees to enter the Property at all times for the purpose of 
inspecting the Property to determine whether the Lessee is complying with the terms 
of this lease and for the purpose of doing other lawful acts that may be necessary to 
protect the Lessor’s interest in the Property.  

 
10. Acceptance by Lessee.  The Lessee accepts the Property in its present condition. The 

Lessee agrees with, and represents to the Lessor, that the Property has been inspected 
by him and that he has been assured by means independent of the Lessor or any 
agent of the Lessor of the truth of all facts material to this lease and that the Property 
is being leased by the Lessee as a result of his inspection and investigation and not as 
a result of any representations made by the Lessor or any agent of the Lessor. 

 
11. Hold Harmless.  The Lessee agrees to indemnify and hold the Lessor and the Property 

free and harmless from any and all claims, liability, loss, damage, or expense resulting 
from the Lessee’s occupation and use of the Property, specifically including without 
limitations any claim, liability, loss, or damage arising: 

 
(a) By reason of the injury to person or property, from whatever cause, while in 

or on the Property or in any way connected with the property or with the 
personal property in or on the Property including any liability for injury to the 
persons or personal property of the Lessee, his agents, officers, or employees: 

 
(b) By reason of any work performed on the Property or materials furnished to the 

Property at the instance or request of the  Lessee, his agents, or employee: 
 

(c) By reason of the Lessee’s failure to perform any provision of this lease  

Page 40 of 136



 

3 
 

     Or to comply with any requirement imposed on him or on the property by any 
     duly authorized governmental agency or political Subdivisions; Because of the 
     Lessee’s failure or inability to pay as they become due any obligations incurred 
     by him in the agricultural operations to be conducted by him on the Property. 

 
12. Subleasing and Assigning.   The Lessee shall not encumber, assign, sublet, or 

otherwise transfer this lease, any right or interest in this lease, or any right or interest 
in the Property, and any such transfer, whether voluntary or involuntary, by operation 
of law or otherwise, is void and shall, at the option of Lessor, terminate this lease. 
Neither shall the Lessee allow any other persons, other than the Lessee’s agents, 
family and employees, to use the Property or any part thereof.  

 
13. Abandonment by Lessee.  Should the Lessee breach any provision of this lease or 

abandon the Property prior to the natural termination of the term of this lease, the 
Lessor may: 

 
(a) Continue this lease in effect by not terminating the Lessee’s right 

to possession of the Property, in which event the Lessor shall be entitled to 
enforce all his rights and remedies under this lease, including the right to 
recover the rent specified in this lease as it becomes due under this lease: or 

 
(b) Terminate this lease and recover from the Lessee: 

 
(1) All rents that would come due under this lease; 

 
(2) Any other amounts necessary to compensate the Lessor for all 

detriment proximately caused by the Lessee’s failure to perform his 
obligations under this lease. 

 
14. Default by Lessee.  All covenants and agreements contained in this lease are declared 

to be conditions to this lease and to the term hereby demised to the Lessee. Should 
the Lessee default in the performance of any covenant, condition, or agreement 
contained in this lease the Lessor may terminate this lease and re-enter and regain 
possession of the Property in the manner then provided by the laws of unlawful 
detainer of the State of Alaska then in effect. 

 
15. Insolvency of Lessee.  The insolvency of the Lessee as evidenced by a receiver being 

appointed to take possession of all substantially all of the property of the Lessee, the 
making of a general assignment for the benefit of creditors by the Lessee, or the 
adjudication of the Lessee as a bankrupt under the Federal Bankruptcy Act shall 
terminate this lease and entitle the Lessor to reenter and regain possession of the 
Property. 

 
16. Attorney’s Fees.  Should any litigation be commenced between the parties to this lease 

concerning the Property, this lease, or the rights and duties in relation thereto, the 
Lessor shall be entitled to reasonable attorney fees pursuant to Alaska Rule of Civil 
Procedure 82. 

Page 41 of 136



 

4 
 

17. Notices.  Except as otherwise expressly provided by law, any and all notices or other 
communications required or permitted by this lease or by law to be served on or given 
to either party hereto by the other party hereto shall be in writing and shall be deemed 
duly served and given when personally delivered to the party to whom it is directed, 
or, in lieu of such personal service, when deposited in the United States mail, first-
class postage prepaid, addressed to the Lessee or to the Lessor at their above specified 
addresses. Either party, the Lessee or the Lessor, may change their address for the 
purpose of this paragraph by giving written notice of such change to the party in the 
manner provided in this paragraph. 

 
18. Heirs and Successors.  This lease shall be binding on and shall inure to the benefit of 

the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the parties hereto, but 
nothing in this paragraph contained shall be construed as a consent by the Lessor to 
any assignment of this lease or any interest therein by the Lessee. 

 
19. Miscellaneous. 
 

(a) This instrument contains all of the agreements and conditions 
made between the parties to this lease and may not be           
modified orally or in any other manner than by an agreement in writing signed 
by all parties to this lease or their respective successors in interest, or assigns. 

 
(b) Time is of the essence of each term and provision of this lease. 

 
(c) The titles of the paragraphs of this lease shall not be considered to be part of 
     the lease for purposes of construction and interpretation. 
 
(d) If any terms or provisions of this lease or the application thereof to any person    
     or circumstance shall to any extent be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder 
     of this lease, or the application of such term or provision to persons or 
     circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, 
     shall not be affected thereby and each term and provision of this lease shall be 
     valid and be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

 
20. Waiver.  The waiver of any breach or any of the provisions of this lease by the Lessor 

shall not constitute a continuing waiver or a waiver of any subsequent breach by the 
Lessee either of the same or of another provision of this lease. 

 
21. Cancellation/Reduction.  Any mortgage or statute notwithstanding, Lessor may cancel 

this lease at any time between and including November 1 and March 31 by so notifying 
Lessee and paying Lessee an amount equal to one-fourth (1/8) of the rent paid by 
Lessee for the previous year. Lessor may cancel the lease at any time between and 
including April 1 and October 31 by so notifying Lessee and paying Lessee an amount 
equal to (a) one-fourth (1/4) the previous year’s rent payment plus (b) one and 2/10 
(1.2) times the price of the fertilizer spread (if any) on the Property for the then current 
growing season (maximum 200 pounder per acre), minus (c) 75/100 (.75) times (b), 
if the first hay crop has been removed. Lessor may exercise these rights to cancel the 
lease or reduce acreage with or without cause. In addition to Lessor’s right to cancel, 

Page 42 of 136



 

5 
 

from time to time Lessor may reduce the acreage. The above formula shall be used 
on a prorate basis for such reductions in acreage. 
                                                                    

22. Lessee agrees to apply a minimum rate of 200 pounds of fertilizer per acre annually. 
More than 200 pounds per acre will be at Lessee’s discretion. Verification of fertilizer 
application shall be the responsibility of Lessee.  Lessee shall maintain receipts of 
fertilizer applied each year with invoicing specifically noting “PMA 5 ACRE AG LEASE” 
by vendor. 

 
23. Lessee agrees that any time that he will be working equipment around runways or 

taxiways he will first notify Palmer Flight Service Station operator, or the City of Palmer 
Airport Manager in the event contact cannot be made with the Flight Service Station. 

 
24. Lessee shall, each year this agreement is in effect, give notice in writing on or before 

January 30th that he intends to operate and harvest the crop according to the 
agreement. Failure to do so shall be termination of the agreement and the Lessor may 
immediately seek a new tenant. 

 
 
 

LESSOR: CITY OF PALMER 
 
 
 

BY: ______________________________________   DATE: ________________ 
      Nathan E. Wallace, City Manager 
 
 
 
LESSEE: BEN VANDERWEELE 
 
 
 
BY: ______________________________________   DATE: ________________ 
      Ben VanderWeele  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 43 of 136



 

6 
 

NOTARY 
 
STATE OF ALASKA  ) 
     )ss. 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 
 
 THIS IS TO CERTIFY that on the ______day of April, 2018, before me the 
undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska, duly commissioned and sworn, 
personally appeared, Nathan E. Wallace, known to me to be the identical individual 
described in and who executed the within and foregoing Lease Amendment and 
Modification Agreement as City Manager of the City of Palmer, freely and voluntarily on 
behalf of the City of Palmer for the uses and purposes therein mentioned. 
 
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND and official seal the day and year last above written. 
 
_____________________ 
Notary Public in and for Alaska 
 
My commission expires: ____________ 
 

 
 
NOTARY 
 
STATE OF ALASKA  ) 
     )ss. 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 
 
 This is to certify that on the _____ day of April, 2018, before me, the undersigned, 
a Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska, personally appeared, Ben VanderWeele, 
known to me to be the person named in the foregoing instruments, acknowledged to me 
that he had executed the same for the uses and purposes therein stated. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal the date and year first above written. 
 
 
___________________ 
Notary public in and for Alaska 
 
My commission expires: ___________ 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 44 of 136



 

7 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 
Property:  
 
The property hereby is described as:  That portion of the NE ¼ NE ¼, Section 9, Township17 
North, Range 2 East, Seward Meridian, Palmer Recording District, Alaska: Commencing at the 
Northeast corner of said Section 9; thence South along the Section line common to Sections 9 
and 10 a distance of 495.00 feet; thence West a distance of 40.00 feet to the Westerly right of 
way line of Outer Springer Loop which is the Point of Beginning; thence West a distance of 
425.39 feet; thence South a distance of 512.00 feet; thence East to the highway right of way a 
distance of 425.39 feet; thence North along said right of way line a distance of 512.00 feet to 
the Point of Beginning, containing 5.00 acres, more or less.    

Page 45 of 136



P
age 46 of 136



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 18-046 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Action Memorandum No. 18-046 

 
Subject:  Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute a New Agricultural Hay Lease 
Agreement with Adam J. Jenski, dba RK Ranch, on Approximately 110 Acres of Airport Lands Currently in 
Hay Fields at the Palmer Municipal Airport 
 
Agenda of: April 10, 2018 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: City Manager 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development    

X  Finance 
 

 3/19/18 
  Fire    
  Police     
  Public Works     

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 

 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 7,164.30 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
 Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
 Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
X Budgeted Line item(s): 03-00-00-3432                                             $4,790.24 
X Not budgeted  03-00-00-3432                                             $2,374.06 
 
 

Director of Finance Signature:  

Page 47 of 136



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 18-046 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
 Final RFB Rankings 
 Notice of Intent to Award (NOIA) 
 Jenski Bid Proposal 
 Draft Agricultural Hay Lease Agreement  

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
The City of Palmer recently put out a Request for Bid on a new five year agricultural hay lease agreement 
under RFB 18-01PAQ.  The bid proposals were ranked based upon price per acre offered, haying 
equipment available and experience in commercial hay production.  Two qualified bids were received with 
the highest qualified bid received from Adam J. Jenski. 
 
The new agricultural hay lease agreement encompasses approximately 110 acres of hay grounds 
previously under production as well as a few new areas added after the recent construction project from 
2017.  The new lease rate of $65.13 per acre was established through this bidding process as offered by 
Mr. Jenski.  The new lease agreement and associated documents also provide for additional training and 
safety protocols not present in prior hay lease agreements while performing haying operations on airport 
grounds.  
  
The agricultural leases at the airport are recognized in the Airport Master Plan as a source of revenue and 
thus are in agreement with Federal Aviation Administration Sponsor Assurance #6, “Consistency with 
Local Plans”, # 19 “Operations and Maintenance” and #24 “Fee and Rental Structure”. 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
To approve Action Memorandum No. 18-046 to execute a new five year agricultural hay lease agreement 
with Adam J. Jenski dba RK Ranch. 

Page 48 of 136



 

RFB Final Rankings: 

RFB 18-01PAQ: FIVE YEAR HAY LEASE AT THE WARREN ‘BUD’ WOODS PALMER MUNICIPAL AIRPORT 

Qualified Bidders will specify the Following: 

 Minimum Bid of at least $50.00 Per Acre 

 Listing of the Equipment that will be used to perform haying operations in a professional workman like manner 

 Bidder history performing commercial haying operations, i.e. number of years haying   

 

Criteria:       Scale:  Points Range:              

Price Per Acre (Minimum of $50.00 per acre)  60 %  0 - 60 

Equipment Available for Haying Operations   20 %  0 - 20 

Years of Experience Performing Commercial Haying  20 %  0 - 20 

 

Clark Bid Proposal    Points    Jenski Bid Proposal    Points 

Price per Acre   ($52.25)  15    Price per acre  ($65.13)  55 

Haying Equipment Available   8    Haying Equipment Available   18 

Experience      12    Experience     15  

 

Total Points     35          88    

P
age 49 of 136



Page 50 of 136



Page 51 of 136



Page 52 of 136



Page 53 of 136



Page 54 of 136



 

1 
 

City of Palmer 
231 West Evergreen Avenue 

Palmer, AK 99645 
907-745-3271 

 
PALMER MUNICIPAL AIPORT 

AGRICULTURAL HAY LEASE AGREEMENT No. 18-001 
 
 

 This is a lease between Adam J. Jenski dba RK Ranch, hereinafter “Lessee”, whose address 
is P.O. Box 167, Sutton, AK. 99674, and the CITY OF PALMER, an Alaska Municipal Corporation, 
hereinafter, “Lessor”, whose address is 231 W. Evergreen, Palmer, Alaska 99645. 
 

1. Property and Rent.  The property leased hereby is approximately 110 acres more or 
less and is further described in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein. The 
rent shall be $65.13 per acre, per year, or $7,164.30, annually. (This rate was 
determined by the highest bid in response to RFB 18-01PAQ Hay Lease.) The first 
payments shall be paid in semi-annual payments of $3,582.15, per the following 
schedule: Lessee agrees to pay one-half (1/2) of the annual rent upon written 
notification of award by the City and signing of this lease. The second one-half (1/2) 
of the annual rent is due on or before July 1, 2018.  The remainder of all annual lease 
payments are as follows: 

 On or before July 1, 2019 
 On or before July 1, 2020 
 On or before July 1, 2021 
 On or before July 1, 2022      

 
2. Term. The term of this lease is from 10 April, 2018 until 31 December, 2022.  
 
3. Use of Property.  The Property shall be used only for the growing and harvesting 

of hay. The Property shall not be used for any other purpose. 
 
4. Operations on Property.  All operations conducted on the Property by the Lessee as 

incidents of use specified in paragraph 3 of this lease shall be conducted by the Lessee 
in accordance with the best course of husbandry practiced in the Matanuska-Susitna 
Borough. Should the Lessee fail to take any action required by said best course of 
husbandry or should the Lessee fail to conduct any operation undertaken by him on 
the Property in accordance with said best course of husbandry, the Lessor may, after 
serving ten (10) days written notice of such failure on the Lessee in the manner 
provided for service of notices in this lease, terminate this lease. While operating 
vehicles and equipment on the subject parcel(s) as described in Exhibit A, the lessee 
shall use a flashing yellow light visible for at least one mile atop all vehicles or 
equipment in use.  All vehicle or equipment operators must maintain two way radio 
contact with Flight Service Station personnel in either Palmer or Kenai, should Palmer 
Flight Service Station be closed.  In addition, all operators must read, understand and 
sign PMA “Two Way Radio Communication Protocols” and the “Letter of Agreement” 
for vehicle operations on aircraft movement areas.  

 

Page 55 of 136



 

2 
 

5. Waste or Nuisance.  The Lessee shall not commit or permit the commission by others 
any waste, petroleum products, or the release of any hazardous material on the 
Property; the Lessee shall not maintain, commit, or permit the maintenance or 
commission of any nuisance on the Property; and the Lessee shall not use or permit 
the use of the Property for any unlawful purpose. The Lessee shall not maintain any 
equipment or conduct any repairs on the Property. 

 
6. Insurance Hazards.  The Lessee shall not commit or permit the commission of any 

hazardous acts on the Property nor use or permit the use of the Property in any 
manner that will increase the existing rates for or cause the cancellation of any 
insurance policy insuring the Property. The Lessee shall, at his own cost and expense, 
comply with any and all requirements of Lessor’s insurance carriers necessary for the 
continued maintenance at reasonable rates of reasonable insurance on the Property.  

 
7. Maintenance.  The Lessee shall, at his own cost and expense, keep and maintain the 

Property in good order and in as safe and clean a condition as they were when received 
by him from the Lessor. 

 
8. Alterations and Liens.  The Lessee shall not make or permit any other person to make 

any alterations to the Property or to any improvement thereon or facility appurtenant 
thereto without the written consent of the Lessor first had and obtained. The Lessee 
shall keep the premises free and clear from any and all liens, claims, and demands for 
work performed, materials furnished, or operations conducted thereon at the instance 
or request of Lessee.  

 
9. Inspection by Lessor.  The Lessee shall permit the Lessor or Lessor’s agents, 

representatives, or employees to enter the Property at all times for the purpose of 
inspecting the Property to determine whether the Lessee is complying with the terms 
of this lease and for the purpose of doing other lawful acts that may be necessary to 
protect the Lessor’s interest in the Property.  

 
10. Acceptance by Lessee.  The Lessee accepts the Property in its present condition. The 

Lessee agrees with, and represents to the Lessor, that the Property has been inspected 
by him and that he has been assured by means independent of the Lessor or any 
agent of the Lessor of the truth of all facts material to this lease and that the Property 
is being leased by the Lessee as a result of his inspection and investigation and not as 
a result of any representations made by the Lessor or any agent of the Lessor. 

 
11. Hold Harmless.  The Lessee agrees to indemnify and hold the Lessor and the Property 

free and harmless from any and all claims, liability, loss, damage, or expense resulting 
from the Lessee’s occupation and use of the Property, specifically including without 
limitations any claim, liability, loss, or damage arising: 

 
(a)  By reason of the injury to person or property, from whatever cause, 

while in or on the Property or in any way connected with the property 
or with the personal property in or on the Property including any liability 
for injury to the persons or personal property of the Lessee, his agents, 
officers, or employees: 

Page 56 of 136



 

3 
 

(b) By reason of any work performed on the Property or materials furnished 
to the Property at the instance or request of the  Lessee, his agents, or 
employee: 

 
(c)  By reason of the Lessee’s failure to perform any provision of this lease  
      Or to comply with any requirement imposed on him or on the  
      Property by any duly authorized governmental agency or political  

Subdivisions; Because of the Lessee’s failure or inability to pay as they 
become due any obligations incurred by him in the agricultural 
operations to be conducted by him on the Property. 
 

12. Subleasing and Assigning.   The Lessee shall not encumber, assign, sublet, or 
otherwise transfer this lease, any right or interest in this lease, or any right or interest 
in the Property, and any such transfer, whether voluntary or involuntary, by operation 
of law or otherwise, is void and shall, at the option of Lessor, terminate this lease. 
Neither shall the Lessee allow any other persons, other than the Lessee’s agents, 
family and employees, to use the Property or any part thereof.  

 
13. Abandonment by Lessee.  Should the Lessee breach any provision of this lease or 

abandon the Property prior to the natural termination of the term of this lease, the 
Lessor may: 

 
(a) Continue this lease in effect by not terminating the Lessee’s right 

to possession of the Property, in which event the Lessor shall be 
entitled to enforce all his rights and remedies under this lease, including 
the right to recover the rent specified in this lease as it becomes due 
under this lease: or 

 
(b) Terminate this lease and recover from the Lessee: 

 
(1) All rents that would come due under this lease; 

 
(2) Any other amounts necessary to compensate the Lessor for all 

detriment proximately caused by the Lessee’s failure to perform 
his obligations under this lease. 

 
14. Default by Lessee.  All covenants and agreements contained in this lease are declared 

to be conditions to this lease and to the term hereby demised to the Lessee. Should 
the Lessee default in the performance of any covenant, condition, or agreement 
contained in this lease the Lessor may terminate this lease and re-enter and regain 
possession of the Property in the manner then provided by the laws of unlawful 
detainer of the State of Alaska then in effect. 

 
15. Insolvency of Lessee.  The insolvency of the Lessee as evidenced by a receiver being 

appointed to take possession of all substantially all of the property of the Lessee, the 
making of a general assignment for the benefit of creditors by the Lessee, or the 
adjudication of the Lessee as a bankrupt under the Federal Bankruptcy Act shall 

Page 57 of 136



 

4 
 

terminate this lease and entitle the Lessor to reenter and regain possession of the 
Property. 

 
16. Attorney’s Fees.  Should any litigation be commenced between the parties to this lease 

concerning the Property, this lease, or the rights and duties in relation thereto, the 
Lessor shall be entitled to reasonable attorney fees pursuant to Alaska Rule of Civil 
Procedure 82. 

 
17. Notices.  Except as otherwise expressly provided by law, any and all notices or other 

communications required or permitted by this lease or by law to be served on or given 
to either party hereto by the other party hereto shall be in writing and shall be deemed 
duly served and given when personally delivered to the party to whom it is directed, 
or, in lieu of such personal service, when deposited in the United States mail, first-
class postage prepaid, addressed to the Lessee or to the Lessor at their above specified 
addresses. Either party, the Lessee or the Lessor, may change their address for the 
purpose of this paragraph by giving written notice of such change to the party in the 
manner provided in this paragraph. 

 
18. Heirs and Successors.  This lease shall be binding on and shall inure to the benefit of 

the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the parties hereto, but 
nothing in this paragraph contained shall be construed as a consent by the Lessor to 
any assignment of this lease or any interest therein by the Lessee. 

 
19. Miscellaneous. 
 

(a)  This instrument contains all of the agreements and conditions 
made between the parties to this lease and may not be           
modified orally or in any other manner than by an agreement in writing 
signed by all parties to this lease or their respective successors in 
interest, or assigns. 

 
(b) Time is of the essence of each term and provision of this lease. 

 
( )   The titles of the paragraphs of this lease shall not be considered to  
       be part of the lease for purposes of construction and interpretation. 
 
(d)  If any terms or provisions of this lease or the application thereof to    
       any person or circumstance shall to any extent be invalid or  
       Unenforceable, the remainder of this lease, or the application of  
       such term or provision to persons or circumstances other than 
       those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not 
       be affected thereby and each term and provision of this lease 
       shall be valid and be enforced to the fullest extent permitted 
       by law. 

 
20. Waiver.  The waiver of any breach or any of the provisions of this lease by the Lessor 

shall not constitute a continuing waiver or a waiver of any subsequent breach by the 
Lessee either of the same or of another provision of this lease. 

Page 58 of 136



 

5 
 

21. Cancellation/Reduction.  Any mortgage or statute notwithstanding, Lessor may cancel 
this lease at any time between and including November 1 and March 31 by so notifying 
Lessee and paying Lessee an amount equal to one-fourth (1/8) of the rent paid by 
Lessee for the previous year. Lessor may cancel the lease at any time between and 
including April 1 and October 31 by so notifying Lessee and paying Lessee an amount 
equal to (a) one-fourth (1/4) the previous year’s rent payment plus (b) one and 2/10 
(1.2) times the price of the fertilizer spread (if any) on the Property for the then current 
growing season (maximum 200 pounder per acre), minus (c) 75/100 (.75) times (b), 
if the first hay crop has been removed. Lessor may exercise these rights to cancel the 
lease or reduce acreage with or without cause. In addition to Lessor’s right to cancel, 
from time to time Lessor may reduce the acreage. The above formula shall be used 
on a prorate basis for such reductions in acreage. 

                                                                    
22. Lessee agrees to apply a minimum rate of 200 pounds of fertilizer per acre annually. 

More than 200 pounds per acre will be at Lessee’s discretion. Verification of fertilizer 
application shall be the responsibility of Lessee.  Lessee shall maintain receipts of 
fertilizer applied each year with invoicing specifically noting “PMA Hay Lease” by 
vendor. 

 
23. Lessee agrees not to leave equipment unattended on the property from November 1 

to March 31, inclusive. Lessee shall never leave equipment unattended in that part of 
the Airport Lands within 400 feet of centerline of runway 16/34, within 250 feet of 
centerline of runway 10/28 or within 200 feet of centerline of any taxiway. Lessee 
shall not allow equipment into the designated zone (Object Free Area, or “OFA”) or 
within the Runway Protection Zone (“RPZ”) except as necessary to farm said land.  
Overnight parking of any vehicles and equipment used for haying operations shall be 
designated by the Airport Superintendent or his designee.  

 
24. Lessee agrees to remove hay bales and any other obstacles from the designated OFA 

and RPZ at the time the bale is rolled or as timely as possible, but under no 
circumstances shall any bale remain overnight to prevent an object being left inside 
the OFA and RPZ. Lessee shall in no event violate any FAA regulation. 

 
25. Lessee agrees that any time that he will be working vehicles or equipment around 

runways or taxiways he will first notify Palmer Flight Service Station operator, the 
Kenai Flight Service Station operator, or the City of Palmer Airport Superintendent in 
the event contact cannot be made with either of the Flight Service Station. 

 
26. Lessee agrees to cut grass within five (5) feet of runway-taxiway lights where possible 

on that property he is leasing on the airport lands. Also he will cut as close to ditches 
and bank slopes as practicable. 

 
27. Lessee shall, each year this agreement is in effect, give notice in writing on or before 

January 30th that he intends to operate and harvest the crop according to the 
agreement. Failure to do so shall be termination of the agreement and the Lessor may 
immediately seek a new tenant. 

 

Page 59 of 136



 

6 
 

28. This agreement is subject to operational performance by Adam J. Jenski dba RK Ranch 
and any and all future FAA and City of Palmer regulations, amendments or 
modifications to the procedures as outlined in this hay lease agreement.   
 

 
LESSOR: 
CITY OF PALMER 

 
 
 

BY: ______________________________________  DATE: ________________ 
      Nathan Wallace, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
LESSEE: 
Adam J. Jenski, dba RK Ranch  
 
 
 
BY: ______________________________________  DATE: ________________ 
      Adam J. Jenski 
 

NOTARY 
 
STATE OF ALASKA  ) 
     )ss. 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 
 
 THIS IS TO CERTIFY that on the ______day of April, 2018, before me the 
undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska, duly commissioned and sworn, 
personally appeared, Nathan E. Wallace, known to me to be the identical individual 
described in and who executed the within and foregoing Lease Amendment and 
Modification Agreement as City Manager of the City of Palmer, freely and voluntarily on 
behalf of the City of Palmer for the uses and purposes therein mentioned. 
 
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND and official seal the day and year last above written. 
 
_____________________ 
Notary Public in and for Alaska 
 
My commission expires: ____________ 
 

 
 

Page 60 of 136



 

7 
 

NOTARY 
 
STATE OF ALASKA  ) 
     )ss. 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 
 
 This is to certify that on the _____ day of April, 2018, before me, the undersigned, 
a Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska, personally appeared, Adam J. Jenski, known 
to me to be the person named in the foregoing instruments, acknowledged to me that 
he had executed the same for the uses and purposes therein stated. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal the date and year first above written. 
 
 
___________________ 
Notary public in and for Alaska 
 
My commission expires: ___________ 
 

Page 61 of 136



Exhibit A

P
age 62 of 136



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: February 27, 2018, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 6 

                                                                                                                            City of Palmer, Alaska 
City Council Minutes 

Regular Meeting 
February 27, 2018 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A regular meeting of the Palmer City Council was held on February 27, 2018, at 7:00 p.m. in the council 
chambers, Palmer, Alaska. 
 
Mayor DeVries called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 
Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following were present: 
 
 Edna DeVries, Mayor    Richard Best, Deputy Mayor 
 David Fuller                       Sabrena Combs (participated telephonically) 
           Peter LaFrance                  Steve Carrington (participated telephonically) 
           Brad Hanson                                    
 
Staff in attendance were the following: 
 
 Nathan Wallace, City Manager Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 
 Michael Gatti, City Attorney Angie Anderson, Deputy City Clerk 
 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

1. Approval of Consent Agenda 
a. Action Memorandum No. 18-023: Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Contract 

Amendment Six Awarded for Curatorial, Archival and Museum Services to the Palmer Museum of 
History and Art to Reflect Payments for 2018 

b. Action Memorandum No. 18-024: Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Contract 
Amendment Three for Visitors Information Services Awarded to the Palmer Museum of History 
and Art to Reflect Payments for 2018 

c. Action Memorandum No. 18-025: Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into a Sole Source 
Procurement and Execute a Contract with Alaska Pump & Supply, Inc. for Three FLYGT 
Replacement Lift Station Pumps in the Amount of $74,859.00 

2. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meetings 
a. January 23, 2018, Regular Meeting 

 
Main Motion: To Approve Consent Agenda and Minutes 

Moved by: Best 
Seconded by: Fuller 

Action: Motion Carried 
In favor: Best, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 

Opposed: None 
Absent: Carrington 

 
 

Page 63 of 136



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: February 27, 2018, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 6 

E. COMMUNICATIONS AND APPEARANCE REQUESTS 
 
1. Presentation from Radio Free Palmer Mike Chmielewski Regarding Video Equipment 

 
Mr. Mike Chmielewski, Chief Operating Officer, Radio Free Palmer, reported he had obtained the software 
and equipment and proposed the option of using a new camera system and new website, which offers real 
time live video feed. He proposed filming the joint meeting on March 6. 
 
Mayor Devries called a short recess at 7:16 p.m. so Council Member Carrington could call into the meeting. 
 
F. REPORTS 

 
1. City Manager’s Report 

 
City Manager Nathan Wallace highlighted his written report, assured staff is working hard to plow the roads 
in a timely fashion, and reported legislation will be presented soon for the School Resource officer. 
 

2. City Clerk’s Report 
 
City Clerk Norma Alley highlighted her written report, stated she attended the Alaska Municipal League (AML) 
Conference the previous week, and thanked Mayor DeVries and City Council for their support. 
 

3. Mayor’s Report 
 

Mayor DeVries highlighted her written report and reported: 
• On the resignation of Wesley Rath from the Parks Recreation and Cultural Resources Advisory Board;  
• She spoke with Department of Transportation regarding placement of a roundabout for S. Valley 

Way; 
• On attendance at the AML conference; 
• Representative Don Young’s assistant will come to Palmer to talk about shovel ready projects; and 
• Announced the Choose Respect March on March 22 starting at the Depot. 

 
4. City Attorney’s Report 

 
None 
 
G. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
Mrs. Denise Christopher, Mat-Su Miners Board of Directors Secretary, requested Councils support for the 
Mayors Green Day Gallop grant application. 
 
Mrs. Patty Fisher encouraged all to reduce waste and eliminate plastic bags and She announced a grant was 
secured to distribute 500 reusable bags to the community in the spring. 
 
Ms. Susy Hayes, Ms. Sandy Bell, Mr. and Mrs. Rob Czarnezki, Ms. Onica Powers, Ms. Carol Montgomery, Ms. 
Mollie Boyer, Ms. Diana Zitmanis, and Mrs. Helen Woodings came forward to show support to elimination of 
plastic bags. 
 
H. PUBLIC HEARING  

 
1. Ordinance No. 18-002-Z-1: Amending the Zoning Map to Revise the Designation of a Portion of 

the Warren “Bud” Woods Palmer Municipal Airport – Area Between Lines: North Line-N89⁰58’56” W; 
South Line-N89⁰58’53”W; West Line-N00⁰11’27”W; East Line-N00⁰01’15”E, to be Rezoned from A-I 

Page 64 of 136



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: February 27, 2018, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 6 

Airport Industrial to A-M Airport Mixed Use, Located Within Section 4, Township 17 North, Range 2 
East, Seward Meridian, Alaska 
 

City Manager Wallace reported this is the final step in allowing the aeronautical campground, which will be 
on a temporary basis to assess how much it is used and solely permitted for airport patrons only. 
 
Mayor DeVries opened the public hearing on Ordinance No. 18-002-Z-1. Seeing no one come forward to 
speak, and hearing no objection from the Council, the public hearing was closed. 

 
Main Motion: To Adopt Ordinance No. 18-002-Z-1 

Moved by: Fuller 
Seconded by: LaFrance 

Action: Motion Carried 
In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 

Opposed: None 
 
 

2. Resolution No. 18-010: Accepting and Appropriating the 2018 Alaska Transportation Alternatives 
Program Grant from the State of Alaska, Department of Transportation and Public Facilities, Small 
Federal Programs in the Amount of $323,400.00 for the Installation of American’s with Disabilities 
Act (ADA) Compliant Sidewalks, Driveways and Curb Ramps, in Accordance with the City of Palmer 
2006 Comprehensive Plan 
 

Mayor DeVries opened the public hearing on Resolution No. 18-010.  Seeing no one come forward to speak, 
and hearing no objection from the Council, the public hearing was closed. 

 
Main Motion: To Approve Resolution No. 18-010 

Moved by: Fuller 
Seconded by: LaFrance 

Action: Motion Carried 
In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 

Opposed: None 
 
City Manager Wallace reported the original amount of $250,000.00 was adjusted to meet the grant terms 
He recommended City Council consider matching grant funds. 
 
I. ACTION MEMORANDA 

 
1. Action Memorandum No. 18-026: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute an 

Agreement with the State of Alaska, for City of Palmer Water and Sewer Betterment Installation as 
Part of the Glenn Highway Reconstruction, MP 32-44 Project No. Z581040000, in an Amount Not to 
Exceed $307,270.00 

 
 

Main Motion: To Approve Action Memorandum No. 18-026 
Moved by: Best 

Seconded by: Fuller 
Action: Motion Carried 

In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 
Opposed: None 

 
  

Page 65 of 136



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: February 27, 2018, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 6 

 
2. Action Memorandum No. 18-027: Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Design Services 

Contract Addendum with HDL Engineering Consultants, LLC in the Amount of $46,569.00 for the 
Design Work on the 2018 Pavement Maintenance Project for Taxiway A and Interlinks 
 

City Manager Wallace reported the first step was to obtain the grant and then once the engineering bid is 
completed the city will be reimbursed. 
 

Main Motion: To Approve Action Memorandum No. 18-027 
          Moved by: Fuller 
      Seconded by: Best 
               Action: Motion Carried 

In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 
Opposed: None 

 
3. Action Memorandum No. 18-028: Approving a Council Community Grant in the Amount of 

$2,000.00 to Mat-Su Miners Baseball to Support the “Mayor Green Day Gallup 2018” 
 

Council Member Combs declared she was the President of the Mat-Su Miners Baseball Board and abstained 
from voting. 
 

 
Main Motion: 

 
To Approve Action Memorandum No. 18-028, as Amended 

Moved by: Best                           
Seconded by: Carrington 

Action: Motion Carried 
In favor: Best, Carrington, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 

Opposed: None 
Abstain: Combs 

 
 

Primary 
Amendment 

#1: 

 To Reduce the Amount from $2,000.00 to $1,000.00  

Moved by: Best 
Seconded by: Hanson 

Action: Motion Carried 
In favor: Best, Carrington, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 

Opposed: None 
Abstain: Combs 

 
 

4. Action Memorandum No. 18-029: Approving a Council Community Grant in the Amount of 
$2,007.00 to Mat-Su Running Club to Support the “Who Let the Girls Out 5K & 1K Run/Walk” 
 

Main Motion: To Approve Action Memorandum No. 18-029, as Amended 
Moved by: Best 

Seconded by: LaFrance 
Action: Motion Carried 

In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 
            Opposed: None 

 
 

Page 66 of 136



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: February 27, 2018, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 6 

 
Primary 

Amendment 
#1: 

 To Reduce the Amount from $2,007.00 to $1,000.00  

Moved by: Best 
Seconded by: Carrington 

Action: Motion Carried 
In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 

Opposed: None 
 

J. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Committee of the Whole to Discuss Plastic Bag Legislation (note: action may be taken by the council 
following the committee of the whole) 

 
Main Motion: To Enter into Committee of the Whole 

Moved by: Hanson 
Seconded by: Fuller 

Action: Motion Carried 
In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 

Opposed: None 
 
The Council entered into a Committee of the Whole at 8:42 p.m.  
 
Topics addressed in the Committee of the Whole included: 
 

• All plastic bag ban vs. ban on thinner plastic bags; 
• Bag fee for plastic and paper bags;  
• Consideration for current plastic bag inventory; and 
• Support of reducing waste. 

 
The Mayor adjourned from Committee of the Whole at 9:22 p.m. and reconvened the Regular Meeting. 
 
K. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE 

 
City Clerk Norma Alley reported the written testimony for audience participation regarding plastic bags was 
the item placed on the table. 
 
L. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
Mr. Eugene Carl Haberman stated he was unhappy about the School Board not disclosing settlement matters 
under $250,000.00. 
 
Mrs. Mollie Boyer asked for support from City Council to consider approving plastic bag legislation. 
 
M. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 

 
City Council comments included legislation on a bag ban be brought forward for future consideration and 
interest was expressed in perusing roundabout at S. Valley Way. 
 
Mayor DeVries called a recess at 9:31 p.m. The meeting reconvened at 9:41 p.m. 

  

Page 67 of 136



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: February 27, 2018, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 6 

 
N. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

1. Subjects That Tend to Prejudice the Reputation and Character of Any Person – City Clerk Evaluation 
(Note: action may be taken following the executive session) 

 
Main Motion: To Enter into Executive Session to Discuss Subjects that Tend to 

Prejudice the Reputation and Character of Any Person – City Clerk 
Moved by: Best  

Seconded by: Fuller 
Action: Motion carried 

In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 
Opposed: None 

 
The Council entered into Executive Session at 9:41 p.m. and exited at 10:46 p.m. 
 
O. ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business before the Council, the meeting adjourned at 10:46 p.m. 
 
 
Approved this ____ day of _____________, 2018. 
 
 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
Edna B. DeVries, Mayor  
 
 

Page 68 of 136



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: March 27, 2018, City Council Special Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer, Alaska 
City Council Minutes 

Special Meeting 
March 27, 2018 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

A special meeting of the Palmer City Council was held on March 27, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. in the council 
chambers, Palmer, Alaska. 
 
B. ROLL CALL 

 
Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following were present: 
 
 Edna DeVries, Mayor                  Richard Best, Deputy Mayor 
 Steve Carrington Sabrena Combs 
 David Fuller                              Brad Hanson 
 Peter LaFrance 
 
Staff in attendance were the following: 
 
 Nathan Wallace, City Manager Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 
 Michael Gatti, City Attorney Angie Anderson, Deputy City Clerk 
 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed 

 
D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
Main Motion: To Approve the Agenda  

Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Fuller 

Action: Motion Carried 
In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 

Opposed: None 
 
E. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION - None 
 
F. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

1. Matter which by Law, Municipal Charter, or Ordinances are Required to be Confidential – Pending 
Litigation Attorney Client Communication: Andres Alexander Caceda-Mantilla vs. City of Palmer et. al. 
Case No. 3PA-18-141 CI (Note: action may be taken following the executive session) 

 
Main Motion: To Enter Into Executive Session to Discuss a Matter which by Law, 

Municipal Charter, or Ordinances are Required to be Confidential – Pending 
Litigation Attorney Client Communication: Andres Alexander Caceda-
Mantilla vs. City of Palmer et. al. Case No. 3PA-18-141 CI 

Moved by: Hanson 
Seconded by: Fuller 

Action: Motion Carried 
In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 

Opposed: None 
 

Page 69 of 136



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: March 27, 2018, City Council Special Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 2 

The Council entered Executive Session at 6:03 p.m. and exited at 6:43 p.m. 
 

G. ADJOURNMENT 
 

With no further business before the Council, the meeting adjourned at 6:43 p.m. 
 
Approved this ____ day of _____________, 2018. 
 
          
       
                                                                                      _______________________________ 
                                                                                      Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 
___________________________                                      
Edna B. DeVries, Mayor  

                                                               
 

 

Page 70 of 136



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: March 27, 2018, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 4 

City of Palmer, Alaska 
City Council Minutes 

Regular Meeting 
March 27, 2018 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A regular meeting of the Palmer City Council was held on March 27, 2018, at 7:00 p.m. in the council 
chambers, Palmer, Alaska. 
 
B. ROLL CALL 

 
Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following were present: 
 
 Edna DeVries, Mayor                  Richard Best, Deputy Mayor 
 Steve Carrington Sabrena Combs 
 David Fuller                              Brad Hanson 
 Peter LaFrance 
 
Staff in attendance were the following: 
 
 Nathan Wallace, City Manager Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 
 Michael Gatti, City Attorney Angie Anderson, Deputy City Clerk 
 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

1. Approval of Consent Agenda 
a. Action Memorandum No. 18-039: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute the 

Renewal of the Brand License Agreement with Matanuska Telephone Association for the MTA 
Events Center 

b. Action Memorandum No. 18-040: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute a 
Contract in the Amount of $72,208.80 for the 2018 Crack Sealing, Street Striping, and Infrared 
Pavement Repairs Bid to Alaska Sure Seal, Incorporated 

c. Action Memorandum No. 18-041: Authorizing the Mayor to Execute an Employment 
Agreement with City Clerk Norma Alley 

2. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meetings 
a. February 13, 2018, Regular Meeting 

 
Main Motion: To Approve Consent Agenda and Minutes 
Moved by: Fuller 
Seconded by: Combs 
Action: Motion Carried 
In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 
Opposed: None 

 
E. COMMUNICATIONS AND APPEARANCE REQUESTS 

 
1. Presentation of a Proclamation Honoring National Service Recognition Day. 

 
Mayor DeVries read the Proclamation Proclaiming April 3, 2018, as National Service Day. 

Page 71 of 136



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: March 27, 2018, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 4 

 
F. REPORTS 

 
1. City Manager’s Report 

 
City Manager Nathan Wallace highlighted his written report.  
 

2. City Clerk’s Report 
 

City Clerk Norma I. Alley updated the Council on the Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources Board vacancy 
and recruitment process. 
 

3. Mayor’s Report 
 

Mayor DeVries highlighted her written report. 
 
4. City Attorney’s Report 

 
None 
 
G. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 

 
Mr. Steven Bain, Mat-Su Borough School District Emergency Preparedness Manager, asked for City Council’s 
support for Action Memorandum No. 18-042. 

 
Dr. Monica Goyette, Mat-Su Borough School District Superintendent, urged the City Council to approve 
Action Memorandum No. 18-042 for a School Resource Officer and invited everyone to the Budget 
Information Meeting to be held on April 4 at 10 a.m. at the district office. 
 
H. PUBLIC HEARING  

 
1. Resolution No. 18-011: Authorizing the Issuance and Sale of a Utility Revenue Refunding Bond by 

the City in the Principal Amount of Not to Exceed $4,816,000.00 for Purposes of Refinancing Costs 
of Wastewater Utility Improvements; Establishing the Terms of the Utility Revenue Refunding Bond; 
Authorizing the Sale of the Utility Revenue Refunding Bond to the United States Department of 
Agriculture; and Related Matters. 
 

City Manager Nathan Wallace reported action was needed to approve the refinance as monies are needed 
for last payment. 
 
Mayor DeVries opened the public hearing on Resolution No. 18-011.  Seeing no one come forward to speak, 
and hearing no objection from the Council, the public hearing was closed. 
 
Main Motion: To Approve Resolution No. 18-011 
Moved by: Best  
Seconded by: Fuller 
Action: Motion Carried 
In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 
Opposed: None 
  

Page 72 of 136



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: March 27, 2018, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 4 

 
 
I. ACTION MEMORANDA 

 
1. Action Memorandum No. 18-042: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute a 

Three-Year Agreement with the Matanuska Susitna Borough School District (MSBSD) to Provide a 
School Resource Officer to MSBSD Schools Within the Palmer City Limits, the Amount Being Funded 
75 Percent by MSBSD and 25 Percent by the City of Palmer. 
 

City Manager Nathan Wallace reported this position would be a resource to all palmer schools and to the city 
of Palmer. 
 
Main Motion: To Approve Action Memorandum No. 18-042 
Moved by: Best 
Seconded by: Fuller 
Action: Motion Carried 
In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 
Opposed: None 

 
2. Action Memorandum No. 18-043: Authorizing the City Manager to Amend the Professional 

Services Agreement with HDL Engineering Consultants, in an Amount Not to Exceed $57,507.00, for 
Additional Required Design Phase Services for Sherrod Area Water and Street Improvements Phase 
5, Which Include Street Improvements, Lighting, and a Pathway on Auklet Avenue Between the Glenn 
Highway and Valley Way. 
 

City Manager Nathen Wallace reported this action would amend the current contract to allow more flexibility 
and permit smaller projects. 

 
Main Motion: To Approve Action Memorandum No. 18-043 
Moved by: Best  
Seconded by: Fuller 
Action: Motion Carried 
In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 
Opposed: None 

 
J. NEW BUSINESS 

 
1. Resolution No. 18-012: Adopting the 2018 Update to the City of Palmer Standard Specifications 

for Construction in the City. 
 

City Manager Nathan Wallace stated this was a cleanup and update to the 1999 specifications. 
 

Main Motion: To Approve Resolution No. 18-012 
Moved by: Best 
Seconded by: Fuller 
Action: Motion Carried 
In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 
Opposed: None 

 
K. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE 

 
City Clerk Norma I. Alley reported the School District flyer on the Budget Information Meeting and City Clerk 
Employment Agreement were items placed on the table. 

Page 73 of 136



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: March 27, 2018, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 4 

 
L. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
None 
 
M. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 

 
Council thanked participants for support in the March 18 Green Day Gallop, were pleased they approved AM 
No. 18-042 for a School Resource Officer, stated review of the March 13 Council meeting video was done 
well and looking forward to considering it as a future option, and a look into annexation and Palmer borders 
was encouraged. 
 
N. ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business before the Council, the meeting adjourned at 8:04 p.m. 
 
 
Approved this ____ day of _____________, 2018. 
 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 
 
_________________________ 
Edna B. DeVries, Mayor  
 
 

Page 74 of 136



Project Description Estimated Budget/Cost Planned Completion Status Expenditures Comments

1
Waste Water Treatment Plant 
Upgrades:  MMBR and Secondary 
Clarifiers to meet EPA/ADEC permit 
requirement per Consent Decree

$9,000,000- $14,000,000 
(revised estimate after 65%~ 
$12,610,290)

August 2020

$8,897,273                            
as of March 2018

Funding Sources  On hand: State Grant 
$2.5M   State Grant: $145k   Enterprise 
and GF: $1,600,000                     USDA 
Loan: $4.8   USDA Grant: $3.5

k Construction Commence June On going

k(2) Building/Lab Feb-May
Project is over 50% 

complete
Lab finishing work and system control 
work underway

m Close on  USDA Loan/Grant May On going Bond approved, working transcript
o MMBR System on line for testing July 2018
p MMBR System tesing complete April 2019
o Secondary Clarifiers on line August 2020

P
age 75 of 136



Project Description Estimated Budget/Cost Planned Completion Status Expenditures Comments

2 Rehabilitate RW 16/34 & Related 
Improvements

$10,000,000- $11,500,000 October 2017
Pre-Liminary 
Application 

Approved by FAA

Funding Sources  On hand: State Grant: 
$400K  COP: $225k  Anticipated FAA: 
$9.375M - $10.781M

n Construction Mobilization June On going
o Runway Closed August 2017 Re-opened Aug 21 Apron work and helipad continues

p Winter Closure
October 2017 Project substantially complete

q Final items completed May 2018 Seal and repaint 10/28
r Project Completion June 2018

P
age 76 of 136



Project Description Estimated Budget/Cost Planned Completion Status Expenditures Comments

3
Bogard Road Booster Station to 
provide adequate pressure and 
flow for the western portion of 
Bogard Rd Water Main Extension 
Project.

TBD
Land Prep and 

Engineering 
Drawings Working

$118,595.00

Through use of remaining grant funds 
(14-DC-125), PW has contracted HDL 
Engineering for Preliminary 
Engineering and site preparation.

a
HDL conduct preliminary 
engineering work and booster 
station site prep

$118,595.00 July 2017 Working $118,595.00
Construction and Engineering 
drawings/specs are complete. 

b Project out for bid Completed $105,415.00
Project is currently open for bids. Pre-
bid is scheduled for 11 July     Bid 
opening scheduled for 20 July

c Site prep Completed $28,000.00
Work underway, change order to meet 
ADEC requirements approved. 
Currently stood down for winter.

d Utility & Service Line Extensions On going $82,500.00
MEA has been notified of approval for  
construction of a primary Line 
Extension. No timeline for installation 
from MEA at this time.

P
age 77 of 136



Project Description Estimated Budget/Cost Planned Completion Status Expenditures Comments

4
Public Safety Building:   Repair 
several subfloor structural issues in 
the Booking and PreTrial 
Confinement Areas and complete 
several finishing upgrades, in the 
same area, as required by current 
lease agreement

TBD-$141,000 remaining in 
state grant funds for public 

safety building improvements
TBD

RFP out to bid for Engineering services 
to provide inspection and assessment, 
prepare engineering plans, 
specifications, cost estimates and 
bidding assistance. 

a Engineer and CA Support
With PND Engineers for Fee 

Proposal
9Feb18 $44,852.00 Approved

b Engineer's estimate April 13 Pending

c

P
age 78 of 136



Project Description
Estimated 

Budget/Cost
Planned Completion Status Expenditures Comments

5
ADA Sidewalk Improvements:    As 
part of the Comprehensive Plan the 
City continues to upgrade sidewalks, 
curb ramps and driveways to ADA 
compliance. This years focus will be 
along E Dahlia and Elmwood Aves

$323,400.00 Sept 18

The City has been notifed of an award 
of a grant thru Alaska DOT from the 
federal government for this project in 
the amount of $323,400.00. If 
accepted, the City match is $64,680.00

a Council Accept Grant March Grant accepted by Council
b RFP for project April/May
c Construction Start May/June

P
age 79 of 136



Project Description
Estimated 

Budget/Cost
Planned Completion Status Expenditures Comments

6
Paving Project:   Pave Auklet from 
Glenn Hwy to ARRC Crossing, 
connecting bike path from Tunnel 
at Glenn to Mat River Park/Butte 
Trail

Update engineer estimates for Auklet 
from Glenn to ARRC Crossing,  Gravel 
bike crossing over ARRC this spring, 
work concept for bike continuing bike 
path, solicit funding patners for project 
with City Matching funds of $500,000

a Engineer and CA Support TBD On-going $57,507.00 Approved
b Final design On-going
c

P
age 80 of 136



Project Description Estimated Budget/Cost Planned Completion Status Expenditures Comments

7
Airport 
Road/Evergreen Trail:  
Cconnector to ball 
fields and Cope 
Industrial Trail

None

Examine the costs of 
completing a connector trail 
from Mat River/Butte Trail to 
Cope Industrial trail.  

a
Stake and clear airport 
road row with 
proposed trail

Spring
City Crew with assistance from 
trial partners

b
cP

age 81 of 136



Project Description
Estimated 

Budget/Cost
Planned Completion Status Expenditures Comments

8 Install video cameras to 
monitor city assets

$75,000.00 Fall 2018
Developing Policy and 
recommended locations for council 
approval

a Policy Review/Approval March 2018
Part of City Manager Report March 
13

b Install Beta system April 2018
Equipment install -inexpensive test 
system

c Install remaining system TBD TBD

P
age 82 of 136



RESULTS REPORT 

CITY OF PALMER 

2018 Program Year

report created March 14, 2018

P
age 83 of 136



RESULTS REPORT

Impact to the Member

P
age 84 of 136



Impact to the Member
Our Wellness Framework

The health of your employees is personal to us!  Through our wellness framework, we strive to improve the health and
productivity of your workforce to support your business objectives.

Participation + Engagement = Healthy Outcomes

The foundation for all elements of an
effective wellness program begins with

participation.

Knowledge of health status and risks is
empowering and is crucial to generating
awareness, change and sets the stage for

strong engagement.

Engagement takes participation to the
next level and results in ongoing healthy

habits and behavior change.

Opportunities throughout the year to
proactively connect and engage

members in overall wellbeing will lead to
healthy outcomes.

High levels of participation and strong
member engagement leads to positive

health outcomes.

Through productivity gains and medical
cost containment, a healthier workforce
provides a distinct competitive advantage

to your organization.

P
age 85 of 136



Page 5

Impact to the Member
Demographic Benchmarking
Setting objectives which are clear, aligned and measurable is central to the success of any proactive business strategy.  Treating your wellness program as a business strategy
and measuring the program against specific benchmarks gives greater information to identify and develop strategies that will enable you to meet your objectives.

We have benchmarked your organization's health risks and outcomes throughout this report with demographically similar companies across our book of business.  Our
research shows that benchmarking health risks in this way is more relevant than looking within our book of business, or even within industry.  This unique "Demographic
Benchmark Group" is based upon three stable demographic variables that are strong predictors of a population's current health status and future health outcomes:
            - Age
            - Gender
            - Geographic Location

Your Organization's Demographics

CITY OF PALMER

# of Clients

# of Members 68,149

274

Your Demographic Benchmark Group *
asdg

Age 45 and Over

55% of Population

Male

30% of Population

High Risk Locations

0% of Population

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

* See Appendix B for additional details

Demographics - Age 45 and Over

Demographics - Male

Demographics - High Risk Location 6%

47%

54%

Book of Business Demographic Averages
asdg

P
age 86 of 136



Impact to the Member
Program Summary

Aggregate Personal Health Score

% Met Personal Health Goal

Member %, Low Risk

Member %, Moderate Risk

Member %, High Risk 3%

36%

61%

68%

-5.2

17%

17%

67%

-1.6# Members with a Critical Condition

# of Newly Discovered Conditions

Active Website Members

Members who Faxed Results 48%

97%

15

1

42%

100%

12

2# Eligible

# of Members

Overall Participation Rate

% Retention 69%

39%

33

84

43%

36

84

CITY OF PALMER

PreviousPreviousPrevious CurrentCurrentCurrent

P
age 87 of 136



IMPACT TO THE MEMBER

Participation

P
age 88 of 136



Under 45 45 and Over

11
33%

12
37%

4
12%

6
18%

Participants by Age
10/2017 - 1/2018

Repeat
25
76%

New
8
24%

New vs Repeat Participants
10/2017 - 1/2018

repeat members defined throughout as members in current and prior program period

Impact to the Member: Participation
Participation Overview
Building an awareness of potential health risks and overall health status is a catalyst to
generating health outcomes.  Therefore, participation in the health evaluations is crucial
to providing a foundation for all other elements of an effective wellness program.

On this page, we have broken down participation for your organization's recent health
evaluations to look at important demographic groupings: gender, age, employee v.
spouse, and new v. repeat.

By reviewing participation in aggregate as well as in these key demographics, we can
strategically determine where the biggest participation gaps may lie within your
organization and discuss a course of action to minimize these gaps.

Page 8

CITY OF PALMER

1/2017 - 2/2017 10/2017 - 1/2018

Overall Participation
Rate

# Eligible

# of Members

% Retention 69%

33

84

39%

36

84

43%

Participation Trends

Female

Male 10

23

11

25

Employee

Spouse 0

33

0

36

Male Female

P
age 89 of 136



Impact to the Member: Participation
Participation Benchmarking
We leverage our powerful analytics to better understand the attributes that have the
largest impact on participation rates.

In addition to population demographics, program participation can also be impacted by
other organizational variables, including industry and wellness program incentives.  The
graphic below also shows the range of participation rates for our overall book of
business.  By understanding your organization's participation compared to these
groupings, we can help you assess the effectiveness of your participation strategies.

To qualify for Interactive Health's Healthiest Companies in America award, companies
must achieve a participation rate of 70% or higher among eligible employees.

Page 9

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%
Participation Rate

Book of Business

Industry Benchmark

Demographic Benchmark

Incentive Benchmark

CITY OF PALMER 39%

CITY OF PALMER

Key

Minimum      25th       50th       75th       Maximum

P
age 90 of 136



IMPACT TO THE MEMBER

Engagement

P
age 91 of 136



Page 13

Impact to the Member: Engagement
Emotional Health Risks
As a part of our member Health Assessment, Interactive Health uses a tool called the
DASS 21 to identify risks associated with anxiety, depression and stress within your
population.

Identifying these emotional health risks is important on its own accord; however, these
risks also provide significant insight into the connection between emotional and physical
health.

By better understanding these connections, Interactive Health can more effectively provide
engagement resources that impact the overall wellbeing of each member.

CITY OF PALMER

Emotional Distress At-Risk

3.1% of Members Identified *
1 unique members
Benchmark - 7.3%

Anxiety Depression Stress

# of Members 001

Emotional Health Risks

Prevalence * 0.0%0.0%3.1%

Benchmark * 2.4%3.4%5.2%

97% of members completed the DASS 21 questionnaire (Benchmark - 95%)
* rates exclude non-respondants

Across our Book of Business, members
with a High Risk Personal Health Score have

 a 53% higher prevalence of emotional distress
than members with a Low Risk Personal Health Score.

Source: Interactive Health 2017 Book of Business results

P
age 92 of 136



Page 14

Impact to the Member: Engagement
Lifestyle Health Risks
Lifestyle health risks are also identified based on a member’s Health Assessment
responses.  Insight into these risks provides a member with tangible ways to take
control of their health.

Furthermore, understanding these risks allows Interactive Health to more effectively
coach members and provide resources for engagement.

High Volume Drinking

Tobacco Use

Sleep Apnea Risk

Inactivity Risk

BMI - Overweight

BMI - Obese 13

14

17

2

1

3

Lifestyle Health Risks

39.4%

42.4%

51.5%

6.1%

3.0%

9.1%

Prevalence Benchmark

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%
% of Members

CITY OF PALMER

Your Demographic Benchmark Group

Your Company's Prevalence

Key

P
age 93 of 136



Anemia

Cholesterol

Diabetes

Hypertension

Kidney

Liver

Thyroid

Prostate

Metabolic Syndrome 5

1

2

4

0

0

4

17

0

Health Conditions

1

4

0

0

1

11

0

Newly
Discovered

1

0

0

0

3

6

0

Previously
Known

15.2%

3.0%

6.1%

12.1%

0.0%

0.0%

12.1%

51.5%

0.0%

Prevalence Benchmark

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50%
% of Members

Page 15

Impact to the Member: Engagement
Health Conditions
The health evaluation is a powerful tool to provide members with insights into their current
health status while identifying a number of potential health risks.

During the health evaluation members are asked to complete a health assessment, and
this information is combined with lab data.  We consistently discover conditions based on
lab data which members did not report on their health assessment—we refer to these
conditions as ‘newly discovered’.

We find that discovering new information about one's health can serve as a catalyst for
taking action, leading to greater levels of member engagement and, ultimately, positive
health outcomes.

CITY OF PALMER

Newly Discovered Conditions

45% (15) of Members Identified
17 total newly discovered conditions

Benchmark - 40%

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

60%

P
age 94 of 136



Page 16

Impact to the Member: Engagement
Diabetes Risks
Diabetes is a complex and serious disease, and one that continues to impact a large
portion of the population.  Members who know and understand their risks are empowered
to learn how to control and manage their condition appropriately.

Identification of pre-diabetes is an especially crucial opportunity to educate participants
about their risk factors and intercede prior to the development of diabetes.

Through our unique approach, we are able to uncover additional diabetes risks that may
have gone unnoticed through a traditional fasting blood glucose test.

CITY OF PALMER

Pre-Diabetes

Newly Discovered Diabetes

In Control Diabetes

Out of Control Diabetes 1

2

1

3

Diabetes At-Risk Members

3.0%

6.1%

3.0%

9.1%

Prevalence Benchmark

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35% 40%
% of Members

Uncontrolled Diabetic Conditions

33% of Existing Diabetics
1 of 3 existing diabetics are Out of Control

Benchmark - 43%

A1c is a clinical marker for average glucose levels
over the previous 3 months.  This is a more
accurate indicator of diabetes risk compared to
fasting blood glucose, leading to increased discovery

and awareness.

SMART
(actual)

% Received A1c Test
Additional Pre-Diabetes Risk
Additional Newly Discovered Diabetes Risk
Additional Out of Control Diabetes Risk 1

0
0
27%

A1c Testing - Additional Risk Identification

representative of benchmark clients with A1c Smart and Smarter testing solution
risk prevalence has been scaled to reflect 33 members

* (predicted) = predicted additional identification compared to
   current program design

SMARTER
(predicted)*

0
1
6
100%

P
age 95 of 136



Page 17

Impact to the Member: Engagement
Critical Conditions and Immediate Outreach
We provide participants with swift, meaningful information and insights into potentially
life-threatening health conditions.  For members where a critical health issue has been
detected, Interactive Health provides immediate outreach within 1-2 business days of the
lab import.  The intention of these outbound calls is to connect members with critical risks
to a physician.

As a result of this rapid response and high-value experience, Interactive Health's
engagement rate with these high-risk members was 78% in 2016.  Critical outreach
typically impacts 3-4% of members across our book of business.  Critical prevalence and
engagement rates for your unique benchmark group are shown on the right.

CITY OF PALMER

Anemia

Cholesterol

Diabetes

Hypertension

Kidney

Liver

Thyroid

Prostate

All Other 0

0

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

Critical Risk Members

0.0%

0.0%

3.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

Prevalence Benchmark

0% 1% 2% 3%
% of Members

3% (1) of Members Identified
1 total critical conditions identified

Benchmark - 2%

100% Engagement *
Benchmark - 87%

* Includes only two-way, substantive interactions

   All data as of 3/13/2018

P
age 96 of 136



Page 18

Impact to the Member: Engagement
Targeted Outreach
Interactive Health coaches also reach out to those with trending risks, specifically
focused on metabolic syndrome, diabetes, high cholesterol and high blood pressure.

Our trained and certified health coaches will reach out proactively, typically within 7-10
business days, to members with these moderate health risks. This quick and relevant
coaching resulted in 58% engagement across our book of business in 2016.  Typically,
30-35% of members receive targeted outreach.  Outreach prevalence and engagement
rates for your unique benchmark group are shown on the right.

24% (8) of Members Identified
11 total outreach conditions identified

Benchmark - 31%

71% Engagement *
Benchmark - 55%

* Includes only two-way, substantive interactions

   All data as of 3/13/2018

High Cholesterol

Hypertension

Pre-Diabetes

Newly Discovered Diabetes

Out of Control Diabetes

Metabolic Syndrome 5

1

1

2

0

2

Members Identified for Outreach

15.2%

3.0%

3.0%

6.1%

0.0%

6.1%

Prevalence Benchmark

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50%
% of Members

Outreach prevalence and engagement rates for your organization are shown on the
right.

CITY OF PALMER

P
age 97 of 136



IMPACT TO THE MEMBER

Outcomes

P
age 98 of 136



Impact to the Member: Outcomes
Aggregate Personal Health Score
The Personal Health Score (PHS) is designed to help members better understand their overall health risks.  This index is composed of five modifiable risk factors: glucose, blood
pressure, triglycerides, LDL cholesterol and tobacco use.

A member receives one point added to their Score for each point outside of normal range for blood glucose, blood pressure and LDL cholesterol.  For every ten points outside of
normal triglyceride range a member receives one point.  A member is credited -5 points for each of these four risk factors within normal range.  Tobacco users receive 40 points
added to their Score.

Below is your organization's Personal Health Score trend over the past 3 years compared to key benchmarks and broken down by demographics.  To qualify for Interactive Health's
Healthiest Companies in America award, an Aggregate PHS of 0 or less is required.

CITY OF PALMER

-5

-4

-3

-2

A
gg
re
ga
te
 P
H
S

Page 20

1/2017 - 2/2017 10/2017 - 1/2018

Your Company

Benchmark -3.2

-5.2

-3.2

-1.6

Age 45 and Over

Under Age 45 -11.5

0.0

-6.0

1.6

Male

Female -3.9

-8.3

0.2

-5.6

Employee

Spouse

-5.2-1.6

New

Repeat -6.4

-1.6

Your Company
Benchmark
2016 Healthiest Companies

(Higher Risk)

(Lower Risk)

P
age 99 of 136



Page 21

Impact to the Member: Outcomes
Personal Health Goals
In addition to their Personal Health Score, all members receive a confidential and detailed
Personal Health Report, including a Personal Health Goal.

Our HIPAA-compliant Personal Health Goal is designed to motivate members by providing
them with an achievable and progress-based health goal.  In 2016, 71% of repeat
members across our book of business achieved their health goals.

CITY OF PALMER

Low

Moderate

High

87%

33%

50%

Meeting Personal Health Goal - by Starting Risk Level

Meeting Personal Health Goal

68.0% of Repeat Members
Benchmark - 77.3%

1/2017 - 2/2017 10/2017 - 1/2018

Low

Moderate

High 3%

36%

61%

17%

17%

67%

Personal Health Score Risk Stratification

Benchmark

12%

14%

74%

Personal Health Score & Goal

Low Risk (-20 to 0): Stay Low Risk;

Moderate Risk (1 to 25): Move to Low Risk;

High Risk (26 and Above): Reduce Personal Health
Score by 60%

P
age 100 of 136



22: PHS
Compo-
nents
Color
Label

--Change Label: LDL
Improved
Same

Program
10/09/2017-

--Change Label: Glucose
Improved
Same
Worse

--Change Label: Triglycerides
Worse

--Change Label: Smoker
Improved

Blood Pressure

LDL Cholesterol

Blood Glucose

Triglycerides

Tobacco Usage 2

4

4

6

3 12.0%

24.0%

16.0%

16.0%

8.0%

100.0%

83.3%16.7%

25.0%25.0%50.0%

100.0%

100.0%

Repeat Members Out of Normal Range

Impact to the Member: Outcomes
Personal Health Score Components
The success of a wellness program can be measured by its ability to stabilize or reverse the trend of declining health.  To measure success of the wellness program, we review
five key health factors to determine a member's Personal Health Score.

The counts and prevalence on the left are repeat members who received points on their Personal Health Score for each of the five health factors.  The distribution on the right is
the percentage of this group that improved or regressed with respect to that health factor within one year.

CITY OF PALMER

Page 22

Regressed Maintained Improved

P
age 101 of 136



Page 23

Impact to the Member: Outcomes
Personal Health Score Migration
This risk migration chart shows year-over-year changes to overall health for all repeat members in your organization.  Prior year health status is across the top (with totals shown
immediately below the chart).  Moving down each column you can determine what percentage moved to each respective risk level.  You'll note that the percentages in each column
add up to 100%.

The optimal outcome for a population is to maximize the green (positive migration) and minimize the red (regression).  A further breakdown of these risk levels with additional
high-risk detail is included at the bottom.

Number of Repeat Participants Average Change in PHS % to Reduce or Maintain PHS

-20 : 0

1 : 25

26 : 50

51 : 100

Total 80%

100%

100%

67%

80%

-6.2

-73.0

-18.3

-10.3

2.3

25

1

3

6

15

Previous Program

Low Moderate High

C
ur
re
nt
 P
ro
gr
am

Low

Moderate

High

13%

25%

67%

87%

50%

25%33%

4615

CITY OF PALMER

Member Totals by Starting Year Risk Level

Personal Health Score
Starting Group

P
age 102 of 136



RESULTS REPORT

Impact to the Business

P
age 103 of 136



Program
01/18/2017-10/08/20..
10/09/2017-

Page 25

Impact to the Business
Cost Avoidance Analysis
Our cost avoidance model is a simple, transparent and, most importantly, conservative estimate of the hard dollars your company has avoided because of the positive health
migrations of your members over the last program year.

The model looks at the prevalence and risk migration of five health conditions that substantially impact medical spend.  The incremental condition costs, inclusive of medical and
pharmacy, are based on credible research literature from sources such as the American Diabetes Association, National Center of Biotechnology Information and the Journal for
Managed Care Pharmacy.

This analysis is intended to provide an illustration of the program's overall value to your bottom line.  Interactive Health believes this provides important evidence on the success
and benefits of your wellness program investment.

Condition
Prevalence

# of Repeat
Participants
with Condition

# Migrated to
Healthier State

Incremental Condition
Cost per Case

Estimated Cost
Avoidance

CITY OF PALMER

Out of Control Diabetes

Pre-Diabetes

Metabolic Syndrome

Hypertension

Anemia 0.0%

12.0%

24.0%

8.0%

0.0%

0

3

6

2

0

0

3

3

0

0

$9,814

$1,183

$4,953

$1,095

$16,682

$0

$3,549

$14,859

$0

$0

Total Estimated Cost Avoidance

Estimated Cost of Program ($6,435)

$18,408

Net Estimated Cost Avoidance $11,973

P
age 104 of 136



RESULTS REPORT

Appendix

P
age 105 of 136



Page 37

Appendix D
Supplemental Annual Trend Information

CITY OF PALMER

1/2017 - 2/2017 10/2017 - 1/2018
# of Members
Demographics - Age 45 and Over

Demographics - Male
Demographics - High Risk Location
Overall Participation Rate
Spouse Participants 0%

39%

0%
30%
55%
33

0%
43%

0%
31%
58%
36

Benchmark

10%
63%

0%
27%
50%
68,149

Participation

Member Survey Respondents
Health Evaluation was a Good Experience
Program was of Value 100.0%

100.0%
81.8%

100.0%
100.0%
97.2%

Member Survey Results

97.6%
99.3%
89.9%

Emotional Health, At Risk
Anxiety, At Risk

Depression, At Risk
Stress, At Risk
BMI, At Risk
Tobacco Use 3.0%

81.8%

0.0%
0.0%
3.1%
3.1%

5.6%
88.9%

2.9%
8.3%
2.8%
8.3%

Risk Identification - Emotional and Lifestyle

7.6%
58.4%

2.4%
3.4%
5.2%
7.3%

Anemia
Hypertension
High Cholesterol
Diabetes
Metabolic Syndrome
Kidney, At Risk
Liver, At Risk
Thyroid, At Risk
Prostate, At Risk
Members with a Newly Discovered Condition
Members Identified for Critical Outreach
Members Identified for Conditional Outreach 24.2%

3.0%
45.5%
3.0%
6.1%
12.1%
0.0%
15.2%
12.1%
51.5%
0.0%
0.0%

0.0%
5.6%
33.3%
0.0%
13.9%
19.4%
0.0%
25.0%
11.1%
30.6%
8.3%
2.8%

Risk Identification - Conditions

30.9%
2.3%
39.9%
0.4%
5.2%
11.6%
8.8%
18.8%
7.8%
34.7%
5.3%
1.9%

P
age 106 of 136



Page 38

Appendix D
Supplemental Annual Trend Information

CITY OF PALMER

1/2017 - 2/2017 10/2017 - 1/2018

Engagement, Critical Outreach

Engagement, Conditional Outreach

Active Website Members

Members who Faxed Results 48.5%

97.0%

71.4%

100.0%

41.7%

100.0%

100.0%

Benchmark

40.5%

91.3%

54.9%

86.5%

Member Engagement

Aggregate Personal Health Score

Member %, Low Risk

Member %, Moderate Risk

Member %, High Risk

% to Reduce or Maintain PHS

% Met Personal Health Goal

Improved Blood Pressure

Improved LDL Cholesterol

Improved Fasting Blood Glucose

Improved Triglycerides

Quit Tobacco Use 100.0%

0.0%

25.0%

83.3%

100.0%

68.0%

80.0%

3.0%

36.4%

60.6%

-5.2

16.7%

16.7%

66.7%

-1.6

Outcomes

19.5%

65.5%

63.0%

70.6%

82.4%

77.3%

70.1%

11.9%

13.9%

74.2%

-3.2P
age 107 of 136



1700 East Golf Road, Suite 900     l     Schaumburg, IL 60173     l     800.840.6100     l     www.interactivehealthinc.com

© 2018. All rights reserved. Confidential Information. Ownership and use of this report is governed by the legal agreement between Interactive Health
and the party for which it was prepared. Any use not expressly authorized by such agreement is prohibited. 

P
age 108 of 136



 
 
 
 
 
 
TO: Palmer City Council 
FROM: Norma I. Alley, MMC   
SUBJECT: City Clerk’s Report for the April 10, 2018, Council Meeting 
 
 

1. Boards & Commissions Attendance Spreadsheets 
 
The monthly attendance spreadsheets are attached for: 

a. AAC 
b. BED 
c. PRCRAB 
d. P&ZC (March Meeting Cancelled) 

 
2. Election Calendar 
 

Attached is the 2018 Election Calendar. 
 
3. Tentative Upcoming Meetings 

 
 

Tentative Future Meeting Schedule 
Meeting 

Date 
Meeting 

Type Time Notes 

April 17 Joint 6 pm PZC 

April 24 Regular 7 pm  

May 8 Regular 7 pm  

May 22 Regular 7 pm  

June 12 Regular 7 pm  

June 26  Regular 7 pm  

July 10 Special 6 pm Mid-Year Budget Review 

July 10 Regular 6 pm  

July 24 Special 6 pm 2019 Budget Planning 
Priorities 

July 24 Regular 7 pm  

Aug 14 Regular 7 pm  

Aug 28 Regular 7 pm  
 

Norma I. Alley, MMC 
City Clerk 

 
  
  

Phone: (907) 745-3271 
Direct: (907) 761-1321 

Fax: (907) 745-0930 
  

231 W. Evergreen Ave. 
Palmer, Alaska 99645-6952 

www.cityofpalmer.org  
  

  

Page 109 of 136



S:\CityClerk\Council Packets\Reports to Council\Clerk\2018-0410\02 Attendance Report AAC 2018-03.docx 

City of Palmer 
Airport Advisory Commission Members 

 
PMC 2.25.020. There is created a city airport advisory commission which shall consist of seven members. 
 

Seat Board Member Term 
Expires 

A John Lee Oct. 2019 
B Kenneth More Oct. 2019 
C Jeff Helmericks Oct. 2020 
D Andrew Weaver Oct. 2018 
E Joyce Momarts Oct. 2020 
F Shannon Jardine Oct. 2019 
G Allan Linn Oct. 2018 

 
PMC 2.25.140.B. Cause for removal. In addition, a board member may be removed by the council if, during any 12-month 
period while in office: 1) The board member is absent from three regular meetings without excuse; or 2) The board member 
is absent from six regular meetings. 
 

2018 Attendance Record 
    

Board Member Jan 
* 

Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 

Lee             
More             
Helmericks             
Weaver             
Momarts             
Jardine             
Linn             

 
2017 Attendance Record 

    
Board Member Jan Feb Mar Apr May 

* 
June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 

* 
Lee             
More             
Helmericks U            
Weaver    E      E   
Momarts E            
Jardine       E      
Linn             

 
  
* Meeting Cancelled  
** Special Meeting 
 - Present 

E - Excused 
U - Unexcused Absence 
V - Vacant

 

Page 110 of 136



S:\CityClerk\Council Packets\Reports to Council\Clerk\2018-0410\03 Attendance Report BED 2018-03.docx 

City of Palmer 
Board of Economic Development Members 

 
PMC 2.30.010.A. There is created a city board of economic development which shall consist of seven members. 
 

Seat Board Member Term Expires 
A Barbara Hunt Oct. 2020 
D Christopher Chappel Oct. 2018 
B Peter Christopher Oct. 2019 
E Janet Kincaid Oct. 2019 
C Lorie Koppenberg Oct. 2018 
F Kelly Turney Oct. 2020 
G Dusty Silva Oct. 2018 
CC Richard Best Oct. 2018 
PZC Not Yet Appointed Oct. 2018 

 
PMC 2.30.140.B. Cause for removal. In addition, a board member may be removed by the council if, during any 12-month 
period while in office: 1) The board member is absent from three regular meetings without excuse; or 2) The board member 
is absent from six regular meetings. 

2018 Attendance Record 
 
Board Member Jan Feb Mar Mar 

** 
Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct 

* 
Nov Dec 

Chappel   U E          
Christopher   U           
Hunt              
Kincaid  E            
Koppenberg              
Turney E             
Silva              
Best              

 
2017 Attendance Record 

 
Board Member Jan Feb Mar Mar 

** 
Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct 

* 
Nov Dec 

* 
Chappel        E      
Christopher    E   E E    U  
Hunt              
Kincaid  E       E     
Koppenberg   E    E   E    
Turney              
Silva              
Best              

   
* Meeting Cancelled  
** Special Meeting 
 – Present  

E – Excused Absence 
U – Unexcused Absence 
V – Vacant

 

Page 111 of 136



S:\CityClerk\Council Packets\Reports to Council\Clerk\2018-0410\04 Attendance Report PRCRAB 2018-03.docx 

City of Palmer 
Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources Advisory  

Board Members 
 

PMC 2.22.010.A. There is created a city board for parks, recreation and cultural resources which shall consist of seven 
members. 
 

Seat Board Member Term Expires 
A Stephanie Allen Oct. 2020 
B Jo Ehmann Oct. 2018 
C David Dodd Oct. 2020 
D Shannon Connelly Oct. 2019 
E Vacant Oct. 2020 
F Meggie Aube-Trammell Oct. 2018 
G Sally Pollen Oct. 2019 

 
PMC 2.22.140.B. Cause for removal. In addition, a board member may be removed by the council if, during any 12-month 
period while in office: 1) The board member is absent from three regular meetings without excuse; or 2) The board member 
is absent from six regular meetings. 

2018 Attendance Record 
    

Board 
Member 

Jan Feb Feb 
** 

Mar 
 

Apr May 
 

June July July  Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 

Allen               
Aube-
Trammell 

E              

Connelly               
Dodd E   E           
Ehmann    U           
Pollen U              
Rath  E E E           

 
2017 Attendance Record 

    
Board 
Member 

Jan Feb Mar 
 

Mar 
** 

Apr May 
* 

June July July 
** 

Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 
* 

Allen E   E      E E    
Aube-
Trammell 

              

Connelly          E     
Dodd               
Ehmann       E E E      
Pollen               
Rath               

 
  * Meeting Cancelled  
** Special Meeting 
 – Present  

E – Excused Absence 
U – Unexcused Absence 
V – Vacant  

Page 112 of 136



CITY OF PALMER CITY CLERK’S OFFICE 
ELECTION CALENDAR FOR THE  

OCTOBER 2, 2018, REGULAR ELECTION 
 

City of Palmer City Clerk’s Office • 231 W. Evergreen • Palmer, Alaska 99645 
Phone: (907) 761-1321 • Fax: (907) 761-1332 

email: elections@palmerak.org • Website: www.cityofpalmer.org 
For Public Display 

DATE ACTION AUTHORITY 
July 13 Declaration of candidacy packets available online and from the Office of the City 

Clerk. (target date) 
 

July 16 Candidate filing period opens at 8 a.m. (78 days prior to election) PMC 18.15.026 
July 27 Candidate filing period closes at 4 p.m. (67 days prior to election) PMC 18.15.026 
July 30 First day to declare candidacy as a write-in candidate (day immediately following 

last day of filing) 
PMC 18.15.023 and 
Charter Section 1.8 

August 3 Last day to withdraw candidacy by 4 p.m. (7 days after closing of filing period) PMC 18.15.020(C)(2)(e) 
and 18.15.030(C) and 
Charter Section 1.8 

July 23 Last regularly scheduled Council meeting to adopt legislation placing propositions 
and questions on the ballot. (53 days prior to election, which is August 10) 

PMC 18.05.067 

August 21 Last day for Council to appoint Precinct Election Officials PMC 18.22.020(B) 

September 2 Last day to register to vote in the 2016 Regular Election (30 days prior to election Charter Section 10.3 and 
PMC 18.10.010 

September 17 • Early In-Person voting begins (15 calendar days prior to election) 
• First day to request Special Need Ballot 

PMC 18.27.040 
PMC 18.27.060(B)(1) 

September 25 Last day to request an Absentee By-Mail ballot (7 calendar days prior to election) PMC 18.27.020 
September 27 Last day to declare candidacy as a write-in candidate by 5 p.m. (5 days prior to 

election) 
PMC 18.15.023 

October 1 • Early In-Person voting ends at 5 p.m. 
• Last day to request Special Need Ballot 

PMC 18.27.040 
PMC 18.27.060(B)(1) 

October 2 Election Date – Polls open from 7 a.m. to 8 p.m. Charter Section 10.1 and 
PMC 18.05.045 

October 8 • Council Election Certification (Within five days and no later than the second 
Tuesday after election)  
 

• Oath of Offices (within 10 days of election) 
• Election of Deputy Mayor and Alternate Deputy Mayor (First meeting following 

the election) 

Charter Section 2.4 and 
PMC 18.35.100(B)  
 
Charter Section 3.1 
Charter Section 3.3 
PMC 2.05.070 
PMC 2.05.060 

 

P
age 113 of 136

mailto:elections@palmerak.org
http://www.cityofpalmer.org/
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Palmer/#!/Palmer18/Palmer1815.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Palmer/#!/Palmer18/Palmer1815.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Palmer/#!/palmer18/Palmer1815.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Palmer/#!/palmerch.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Palmer/#!/Palmer18/Palmer1815.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Palmer/#!/Palmer18/Palmer1815.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Palmer/#!/palmerch.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Palmer/#!/palmer18/Palmer1805.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Palmer/#!/palmer18/Palmer1822.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Palmer/#!/palmerch.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Palmer/#!/palmer18/Palmer1810.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Palmer/#!/Palmer18/Palmer1827.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Palmer/#!/palmer18/Palmer1827.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Palmer/#!/palmer18/Palmer1827.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Palmer/#!/palmer18/Palmer1815.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Palmer/#!/palmer18/Palmer1827.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Palmer/#!/palmer18/Palmer1827.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Palmer/#!/palmerch.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Palmer/#!/palmer18/Palmer1805.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Palmer/#!/palmerch.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Palmer/#!/Palmer18/Palmer1835.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Palmer/#!/palmerch.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Palmer/#!/palmerch.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Palmer/#!/palmer02/Palmer0205.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Palmer/#!/Palmer02/Palmer0205.html


Page 114 of 136



Mayor’s Memo 
               Council Meeting report – April 10, 2018 

UP COMING EVENTS 

Outreach to High school age student(s) for Boards and   Commission 

Joint Meeting Council and P&Z – April 17 at 7 pm  

       Mayor/Manager meeting – April 19 and May 17 in Palmer 

Who Let the Girls Out – April 20-21 

Agenda setting meeting – April 26 and May 10 

BP Teachers of Excellence – May 3 at Settler’s Bay  6 pm 

Car Show – MTA Event Center – May 5 

Palmer High School graduation – May 8 

Mat-Su Health Foundation Building Ribbon Cutting – May 18 – open house to 
public May 19 – 11 am to 3 pm  

Recycling Open House - May 20 – 2 to 6 pm  

Pioneer & Veterans Home – concert – College of the Ozarks – may 23 at 1 pm  

Job Corps workforce luncheon – May 24 

 

Discussion 

Computer Railroad Meeting report from March 30 

Arctic Street with State Highway System – Council meeting April 10 under Person 
to be heard. 

Cedar Hills Development report  

Town hall at Assembly chambers – with Mayors on Crime in the Valley – date to be 
announced   
PENDING ITEMS –   

 Flag Pole by Library,  
 Electric stands on South Alaska,  
 tennis courts request,  
 Rotary Daron Park,   
 4 Way Stop Inner and Outer Springer,  
 Golden Shovel Award 
 Rep. Young office   

Edna DeVries  Mayor 

Page 115 of 136



Page 116 of 136



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 18-047 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Action Memorandum No. 18-047 

 
Subject:  Approving a Council Community Grant in the Amount of $500.00 to the Great Alaska Council 
Boy Scouts of America Valleywide Community Pinewood Derby Race to be held on April 19, 2018 
 
Agenda of: April 10, 2018 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: City Manager 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development    
X  Finance   2/15/2017 
  Fire    
  Police     
  Public Works     

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 

 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 500.00 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
X Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 500.00 
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
 Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
X Budgeted Line item(s): 01-02-10-6068 
 Not budgeted   

 
 

Director of Finance Signature:  

Page 117 of 136



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 18-047 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
 2018 Council Grant Application 
 2018 Scoresheet 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
The Valleywide Community Pinewood Derby Race is an annual event that supports over 1250 
Scouts in the valley.  This event includes the participation of Palmer Scouts. 
 
The organization will conduct the event at Lithia auto dealership off of the Parks Highway.   
 
This event has not been sponsored in the past.   
 
In February 2014, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 14-043, which established the Council 
Community Grant program. The Council also approved $10,000.00 in the Community Council Grants line 
item for 2018 that would finance approved Council grants. 
 

Legislation # Organization Amount Date Approved 

AM No. 18-021 Who Let The Girls Out  $1500 02/13/18 
AM No. 18-028 Mayor’s Green Day Gallup  $1000 2/27/18 
AM No. 18-029 Who Let the Girls Out Run  $1000 2/27/18 
AM No. 18-038 PMHA Garden and Art Faire  $2000 3/13/18 
AM No. 18-047 Valleywide Community Pinewood Derby    
     
     
Total 2018 Grants approved prior:  $5,500.00  

 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
To approve Action Memorandum No. 18-047 Council Community Grant in the Amount of $500.00 to the 
Great Alaska Council Boy Scouts of America Valleywide Community Pinewood Derby Race to be held on 
April 19, 2018. 

Page 118 of 136



Page 119 of 136



Page 120 of 136



Page 121 of 136



Page 122 of 136



Page 123 of 136



Page 124 of 136



Project Name:  Valleywide Community Pinewood Derby 

Reviewer Name:   Nathan Wallace  Date: 3/27/2018 

Qualification Pre-Check 

All items listed below must be present before further review of application. 

X Event must be accessible to all members of the community.  

No Event must take place within Palmer city limits or within one mile of city limits.  7 miles 

No Event has received funding from the City in the past. List the years funding was received:  None 

 If event was supported by a City grant in the past, the post event report from the previous event is complete.

Application Elements Expectations Points 
Earned 

Ac
ce

ss
ib

ilit
y &

 
St

ra
te

gi
c P

rio
rit

ies
 10 pts 7 pts. 3-0 pts

The application clearly states the economic benefits and the 
reader/evaluator easily understands the benefits to the community 
and residents of the City. 

The application states the benefits, however it is not clear and/or 
the reviewer/evaluator must assume or use reason to determine 
the benefits to the community and residents of the City. 

The application does not clearly demonstrate the benefits and/or the 
reader/evaluator cannot determine through reasoning the benefits to the 
community or residents of the City. 

7 
The application clearly addresses how the project meets one or 
more of the City’s Economic Development Strategic Priorities. 

The application attempts to address how the project meets one or 
more of the City’s Economic Development Strategic Priorities; 
however, the reviewer/evaluator must assume or use reason to 
determine how the project is addressing a strategic priority(s). 

The application does not clearly demonstrate how the project is 
addressing a strategic priority and/or the reader/evaluator cannot 
determine through reasoning how the project is addressing a strategic 
priority. 

3 

Fi
sc

al 

The application clearly states how much financial or in-kind 
services are being requested for the project. 

The application contains information regarding financial and/or in- 
kind services as part of the project; however, it is not clear and 
the reviewer/evaluator must assume or use reason to determine 
what is being requested. 

The application does not clearly state what is being requested and/or 
the reviewer/evaluator cannot determine through reasoning. 10 

The application includes a project budget which demonstrates 
sound fiscal practices and reviewer/evaluator can easily 
understand. 

The application includes a project budget; however, the 
reviewer/evaluator has questions or has to use reason to 
understand the overall budget for the project. 

The application does not include a project budget or the 
reviewer/evaluator cannot understand and/or has significant concerns 
about the budget as presented. 

10 

Be
ne

fit
 The application clearly states how the community will benefit as a 

result of the event. 
The application states the degree of benefits; however, it is not 
clear and the reviewer/evaluator must assume or use reason to 
determine the how the community will benefit as a result of this 
grant. 

The application does not clearly demonstrate the degree of benefits 
and/or the reviewer/evaluator cannot determine the how the community 
will benefits as a result of this grant. 

7 

Re
po

rti
ng

 

The application clearly states how and when the City will receive a 
post event report on this project. 

The application attempts to address how a post event report will 
be given to the City; however it is unclear and the 
reviewer/evaluator must assume or use reason to determine how 
and when the report will be presented. 

The application does not attempt to address how a post event report will 
be given to the City or the reviewer/evaluator cannot determine how the 
report will be presented. 

3 

Total: 40/60 

P
age 125 of 136



Page 126 of 136



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 18-048 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Action Memorandum No. 18-048 

Subject:  City Council Providing a Favorable Opinion, In Accordance with Palmer Municipal Code 9.74.010 
Discharge of Firearms, to Allow the City Manager to Issue an Indoor Gun and Target Range Permit 

Agenda of: April 10, 2018 

Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________
☐ Defeated

Originator Information: 

Originator: City Manager 
Department Review: 

Route to: Department Director: Signature: Date: 
Community Development 

X Finance 3/28/18 
Fire 
Police 
Public Works 

Approved for Presentation By: 
Signature: Remarks: 

City Manager 
City Attorney 
City Clerk 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 0 
 

This legislation (√): 
Creates revenue in the amount of: $ 
Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 
Creates a saving in the amount of: $ 

X Has no fiscal impact 

Funds are (√): 
Budgeted Line item(s): 
Not budgeted 

Director of Finance Signature: 

Page 127 of 136



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 18-048 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
 Valkrie Security and Asset Protection Inc Request for Permit of Indoor Gun and Target Range 
 Site Plan 
 Safety Information 

 
Summary Statement/Background: 
  
Valkrie has requested a permit to operate an indoor gun and target range at the “Old Fred Meyers” 
building at 650 S Cobb Street within the city limits of the City of Palmer. 
 
In accordance with Palmer Municipal Code (PMC) 9.74.010 Discharge of Firearms, a permit may be issued 
when, in the opinion of the city council, the same would not disturb the peace, and the facilities and 
procedures followed conform with the recommendations of the National Rifle Association (NRA) as to 
safety. 
 
Valkrie has met with the Police Chief, Fire Department and Building inspector to review the site plan and 
proposal for safety of the plan.  The site plan indicates the safety measures to insure fire and health 
measures are in place for the storage of ammunition.  The range safety equipment planned to be utilized 
in the facility meet NRA standards and they plan to operate the range facility to meet or exceed 
recommended NRA safety standards. 
 
The facility when complete should not disturb the peace with noise levels as all noise should be contained 
within the facility. 
 
The permit would be reviewed biennially to ensure compliance with NRA recommended standards and for 
issues of disturbing the peace (noise abatement). 
 
The opinion on this permit is not transferrable to any other location within the city without an additional 
opinion of the council. 
 
This action does not infer any transaction between the property owner or the requestor of this permit. 
 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
To provide a favorable opinion on the issuance of a permit to allow Valkrie Security and Asset Protection 
Inc to operate an indoor gun and target range within the city limits. 

Page 128 of 136



                                                                                                                        3/20/2018 

1150 S. Colony Way 

Suite #3, PMB #307 

Palmer, Alaska 99645 

 

Request for Permit of Indoor Gun and Target Range 

Within the City Limits of Palmer, Alaska 

 

To the Distinguished Council of the City of Palmer, 

 My name is Larry Clark and I am formally requesting a permit for an Indoor Gun and Target 

Range within the city limits of Palmer, Alaska. 

 My company is Valkyrie Security and Asset Protection Inc. and we are planning an expansion for 

this new facility, if permitted in Palmer, Alaska, in the previous Fred Meyer building located at 650 S. 

Cobb St. 

 It is our intention to provide additional tax revenue and jobs within the city and continue to be a 

productive entity here in the Mat-SU valley, specifically in Palmer, for many years to come. 

 As a locally owned and operated business, we want to be an integral part of Palmer. By allowing 

us to start this endeavor in Palmer we will be able to hire 60-80 people locally. This will generate 

additional tax revenue from sales and put it right back into the City.  

 Part of our plan with this facility is to also have additional retail space for sublease to other small 

businesses at reasonable rates. We have begun with reaching out to small veteran owned apparel 

companies and want to promote those businesses as well.  

 This facility would be built with state of the art equipment and safety protocols in place. We 

have contracted SR Bales Construction and Paragon Tactical to design and build this range to the highest 

standards. We are having all the designs and blue prints created by Burkhart Croft Architects out of 

Anchorage. SR Bales and Paragon Tactical have designed and built many ranges throughout Alaska and 

the lower 48. We have the utmost confidence in their ability to provide us and the community with the 

safest range possible. The design will accommodate 21 public use lanes at 75 feet long and 8 Private 

lanes 196 feet long. All the range lanes will be encased by concrete walls to add to the noise 

containment and provide an extra layer of secure area for clients. We will be able to accommodate all 

popular calibers of rifle and pistols up to 50 BMG. We will not allow the 50 BMG rifles to be fired within 

our facility but have made sure that we have adequate bullet trap and containments systems for all 

calibers up to that. We anticipate that most clients will use our range for handgun and hunting or 

Page 129 of 136



sporting rifle target shooting.  By having an indoor range, many of our community that hunt, will be able 

to enjoy sighting in for the season in a warm controlled environment.  

 We have made sure that the design of this facility, surpasses the minimum requirements set 

forth by OSHA, EPA and ADEC. Our design will make sure that all noise ordinances and clean air 

requirements and lead abatement are strictly adhered too. We have also designed the facility to a 

standard that will help the local fire department, if the need were ever to arise, with quick containment 

of the boxed ammunition storage within the building. We have no intention of selling reloading supplies 

now or in the future. Boxed ammunition would be sold and stored in a manner that it is safe. All 

firearms and ammunition will be securely stored daily in an ATF approved vault with separate fire 

suppression.   

We will exceed all the NRA requirements by having additional staff and Paramedics on duty 

during business hours. Our staff are licensed NRA instructors and Chief Range Safety Officers. Many of 

our current staff are prior Military and Law Enforcement and have a genuine desire to help in our local 

community.  We will make sure that all safety protocols are adhered too and that the patrons of our 

business follow all NRA safety rules and requirements.  

 This facility will also be a training center for firearm safety courses. We want to make sure that 

the correct information and training are being implemented when it comes to firearms and firearm 

safety. 

 We have chosen the Building in Palmer for many reasons. The first reason is we are a small 

locally owned company and want to see our community prosper. Secondly, we want to be able to 

provide jobs for many that are struggling in this economy. Finally, this location is right in the heart of 

Palmer. It has all the right attributes a business is looking for. We will have ample parking for clients and 

employees. There are many traffic entry and exit points so that we have minimal congestion. We will 

make sure that the surrounding property is maintained in a manner that is appealing to visitors and the 

community. We will be able to host events in our parking area that the city may not have an area for, 

such as Colony Days or Christmas parade setup, just as some examples.  

 Ultimately, we want to be a thriving business in the city of Palmer, providing additional revenue 

and jobs. Making Palmer a stronger, better community. 

 We would ask that the permit for this indoor gun and target range be issued to the owners of 

Valkyrie Security and Asset Protection Inc. and the building and have a biennial renewal. This will assure 

the council and the city we are providing all the necessary safety requirements we have agreed to 

provide. 

  

 

Sincerely, 

 

Larry Clark 

President/CEO 

Page 130 of 136



i_)  s O
IT)

?  '- ffi.Vj
0 -j  ui'
%_  iO
z  cri < t)

3  + c 'm
c.iw j:.

-+'  r _! H
d, E !  -,

!  Q J p

-  : 'S o"7

('a' : '

z
(')
g)R

€/)

!:!:ILLI<
J

2 0 "i=
<  W u.i
>O!

<
2=-

<
a:

DATE:  3/TO/18

DRAWN:  DJD

CHECKED:

PROJECT:  1806

DRAWING  TITLE:

FLOOR  PLAN

REVISIONS:

SHEET  NO:

A2.1

39' - 4" 39' - 4" 39' - 4"

314'  - 8"

39' - 4" 39' - 4" 39' - 4" 39' - 4"

0

0

g

0
i-l  .5)

0

0

:-A.zli

FUTURE

TENNANT  SPACE

i-A.31

1-A.6i

FUTURE

MANUFACTURING

8STATIONS

196-FEET  MAX

PUBLIC RANGEI
21 ST ATIONS @

75-FEET  MAX

FUTURE  '

TENNANT  SPACE

I il il 1.
I'l

  l

5' - 3"
ff

RET  AIL

COUNTER

6' ra  x  ra

AMMO

ARMORY

BREAK

ROOM

VIP

RETAIL

F?

u  LJ  LJ

ENTRY gl '  GUNSMITHING  fi q 9FF,E IJSI- I GUNSMITH

1-A.61

38'  22'

i-at 5) 00

z

cri

z
o

P
ag

e 
13

1 
of

 1
36



Page 132 of 136



Page 133 of 136



P
age 134 of 136



P
age 135 of 136



P
age 136 of 136


	Agenda
	AM 18-044 PHOA Transfer Unit # 4 from Nance to Bell
	AM 18-045 VanderWeele 2018
	AM 18-046 Agricultural Hay Lease Jenski 2018
	2018-0227 Council Minutes
	2018-0327 Council Minutes Special
	2018-0327 Council Minutes
	Manager Report 
	COP 2018 IH Aggregate Report-Council
	Clerk Report 2018-0410
	Mayor's Memo 
	AM 18-047 Council Grant Pinewood Derby 2018
	AM 18-048 Indoor Range Permit



